® 9260 E Stockton Blvd.
On e I Elk Grove, California 95624

Communications

November 14, 2012

Oregon Public Utility Commission
Attention: Filing Center

P.O. Box 2148

550 Capitol Street N.E., Suite 215
Salem, OR 97301-2551

Fax (503) 373-7752

RE: UM 1431 Compliance Letter — Order No. 10-067

Dear Commission:

In compliance with Appendix A, condition # 2 of the above referenced order, Frontier
Communications Northwest Inc is providing a copy of its Quarterly 10-Q report filing and
its inter-company receivables, payables and dividends report for the third quarter 2012.
The quarterly inter-company receivables, payables and dividends report is considered
confidential and should be treated as such. Pursuant to Order 09-197, the “Confidential”
document is being sent via US Mail in a sealed envelope with the proper labeling.

If you have any questions, please contact Renee Willer at (503) 629-2459 or
Renee.Willer@ftr.com or me.

Sincerely,

oseph D. Chicoine
Manager, Compliance and Reporting
916-686-3588
joe.chicoine@ftr.com

Enclosures



Frontier Communications Northwest Inc.
Intercompany Receivables/Payables and Dividends
Third Quarter 2012

(Amounts in thousands, except per share amount)

Assets ( )=cr

Liabilities ( )=dr Balance
Intercompany Receivables/Payables Jui 01, 2012
Accounts Receivable - Affiliates

Notes Receivable - Affiliates

Interest Receivable - Affiliates

Accounts Payable - Affiliates

Notes Payable - Affiliates

Accrued Interest - Affiliates

Cash Dividends Declared
Frontier Northwest to Parent
Parent to Shareholders (total)
Parent to Shareholders (per share)

Redacted

Activity
Q12

Balance
Sep 30, 2012
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FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION

FORM 10-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)

OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

FOR THE QUARTERLY PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012




UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549
FORM 10-Q
(Mark One)
QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) DHE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 19z

For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2012

or
| TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(dy ®HE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 19:

For the transition period from to

Commission file number:__ 0011001

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its arart

Delaware 06-061959¢€

(State or other jurisdiction « (I.R.S. Employer Identification No
incorporation or organizatiot

3 High Ridge Parl
Stamford, Connecticut 06905

(Address of principal executive office (Zip Code)

(203) 6145600

(Registrant's telephone number, including area)code

N/A
(Former name, former address and former fiscal, yeelnanged since last report)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant €l filed all reports required to be filed by Secti8 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange A
1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for suarteh period that the registrant was required I®duch reports), and (2) has been subje
such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes X No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ldsmstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥deb site, if any, every Interactive Data |
required to be submitted and posted pursuant te Bob of Regulation $-during the preceding 12 months (or for such srgeeriod that tr
registrant was required to submit and post suel)il

Yes X No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant iarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a-axxcelerated filer or a smaller report
company. See definition of “accelerated filer,artye accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting camy' in Rule 122 of the Exchange A«
(Check one):
Large accelerated filer [ X ] Acceladfiler [ ] Non-accelerated filer] Smaller reporting company [ ]
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the BErge Act).
Yes___ No_ X

The number of shares outstanding of the regissa@®mmon Stock as of October 26, 2012 was 998,885,0
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PART |. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ltem 1. Financial Statements

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(% in thousands)

ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel

Accounts receivable, less allowances of $107,7265%4197,048, respective

Prepaid expenst
Restricted cas
Income taxes and other current as

Total current asse

Restricted cas

Property, plant and equipment, |
Goodwill

Other intangibles, ne

Other asset

Total asset

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Long-term debt due within one ye
Accounts payabl

Advanced billings

Accrued other taxe

Accrued interes

Other current liabilitie:

Total current liabilities

Deferred income taxe

Pension and other postretirement ben:
Other liabilities

Long-term deb:

Equity:
Shareholders' equity of Frontit
Common stock, $0.25 par value (1,750,000,000 aizbbishares
998,453,000 and 995,128,000 outstanding, respégtiaved
1,027,986,000 issued, at September 30, 2012 anghiber 31, 2011
Additional paic-in capital
Retained earning
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net o
Treasury stocl
Total shareholders' equity of Front
Noncontrolling interest in a partnerst
Total equity

Total liabilities and equit'

(Unaudited)

December 31,

September 30, 201 2011
$ 1,099,48° $ 326,09
557,57 585,15
69,59 63,42:
54,967 -
347,60: 264,35
2,129,22i 1,239,03!
42,357 144,68(
7,482,901 7,547,52.
6,337,71! 6,337,71!
1,630,96! 1,964,50!
215,31¢ 196,31
$ 17,838,48 $ 17,429,76
$ 596,54! $ 94,01¢
322,81 519,54¢
147,22¢ 152,78
83,99¢ 64,39:
217,52t 169,34(
152,88: 152,13¢
1,520,98! 1,152,211
2,608,05. 2,458,01
923,63¢ 918,70:
224,81¢ 225,85¢
8,257,59! 8,205,84.
256,99° 256,99°
4,735,511 4,773,38.
38,93! 226,72:
(374,82) (386,96
(368,579 (415,00
4,288,04! 4,455,13
15,35¢ 13,99’
4,303,40! 4,469,13.
$ 17,838,48 $ 17,429,76

The accompanying Notes are an integral part oeti@mnsolidated Financial Statements.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE THREE AND NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012 AND 2011
(% in thousands, except for per-share amounts)

(Unaudited)
For the three months end For the nine months end
September 3( September 3(
2012 2011 2012 2011

Revenue $ 1,25246' $ 1,290,93° $ 3,779,300 $ 3,959,89
Operating expense

Network access expens 102,05: 119,94: 333,05! 397,85
Other operating expens 572,34¢ 571,38t 1,663,84. 1,729,82.
Depreciation and amortizatic 298,41t 351,90° 962,76: 1,062,15i
Integration cost 4,45¢ 67,41: 68,20 100,89¢
Total operating expens 977,27 1,110,64 3,027,86. 3,290,72
Operating incomi 275,19t 180,29: 751,43¢ 669,16
Investment income (los: 328 (66€) 12,417 2,62¢
Losses on early extinguishment of d (24%) - (71,067 -
Other income (loss), ni 4,27¢ 1,502 6,57 7,41¢
Interest expens 172,18t 165,75! 509,10 500,03
Income before income tax 107,36" 15,37: 190,26! 179,16¢
Income tax expense (bene 35,73¢ (6,94¢) 66,15( 66,80¢
Net income 71,62¢ 22,32( 124,11! 112,36(
Less: Income attributable to the noncontrollingiest in a partnersh 4,62¢ 1,92¢ 12,35¢ 4,99:
Net income attributable to common shareholdersroftrer $ 67,000 $ 20,39 $ 111,75 $ 107,36
Basic and diluted net income per share attributedotsmmor

shareholders of Frontis $ 0.07 $ 0.0z $ 0.11 $ 0.11

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE THREE AND NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012 AND 2011
($ in thousands)

(Unaudited)
For the three months end For the nine months end
September 3( September 3(
2012 2011 2012 2011

Net income $ 71,62¢ $ 22,32( $ 124,11 $ 112,36(
Other comprehensive income, |

of tax (see Note 1! 2,30¢ 3,334 12,14; 8,324
Comprehensive incorr 73,93¢ 25,65¢ 136,25 120,68
Less: Comprehensive incor

attributable to the noncontrollir

interest in a partnersh (4,62¢6) (1,925 (12,359 (4,997
Comprehensive income attributable

the common shareholders of Fron $ 69,30¢ $ 23,72¢ $ 123,89¢ $ 115,69:

The accompanying Notes are an integral part okti@@mnsolidated Financial Statements.
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Balance January 1, 20:
Stock plans
Dividends on commo
stock
Net income
Other comprehensiv
income, ne

of tax
Distributions
Balance September 2
2011
Stock plans
Dividends on commo
stock
Net income
Other comprehensiv
income, ne

of tax
Distributions

Balance December 3
2011
Stock plans
Dividends on commo
stock
Net income
Other comprehensiv
income, ne

of tax
Distributions

Balance September 2
2012

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011, THE THREE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND THE NINE
MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

($ and shares in thousands)

(Unaudited)

Frontier Shareholde

Accumulated

Additional Other

Common Stocl Paic-In Retainec Comprehensivi Treasury Stoc Noncontrolling Total

Shares Amount Capital Earnings Loss Shares Amount Interest Equity
1,027,98  $ 256,99 $ 552547  $ 77100 $ (229,549 (34,13) (433,280 13,00: 5,209,74:
- - (9,329 - - 1,282 18,28¢ - 8,964
(559,80) - - (559,80
- 107,36 4,99¢ 112,36(
8,32¢ - 8,32«
B (3,000 (3,000
1,027,98 256,99 4,956,34 184,47: (221,22 (32,849 (414,99) 14,99¢ 4,776,58:
. - 3,62¢ B . ©) (4) - 3,62(
(186,58) - - (186,58,
- 42,24° 3,001 45,24¢
(165,73) - (165,73)
- (4,000 (4,000
1,027,98 256,99 4,773,38. 226,72: (386,967 (32,859 (415,00) 13,997 4,469,13
- - (37,867 - - 3,32¢ 46,42! - 8,55€
(299,54) - (299,54)
111,75 12,35¢ 124,11!
12,14: - 12,14:
- (11,000 (11,000
1,027,98 $ 256,99 $ 4,735,511 $ 38,93. $ (374,82) (29,53) (368,57¢) 15,35¢ 4,303,401

The accompanying Notes are an integral part oeti@mnsolidated Financial Statements.




PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012 AND 21
(% in thousands)

Cash flows provided by (used in) operating actgt
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashidea by
operating activities
Depreciation and amortization expel
Stock based compensation expe
Pension/OPEB cos
Losses on early extinguishment of d
Other nor-cash adjustmen
Deferred income taxe
Change in accounts receival
Change in accounts payable and other liabil

(Unaudited)

Change in prepaid expenses, income taxes and ailrent assel

Net cash provided by operating activit

Cash flows provided from (used by) investing atieg:
Capital expenditure- Business operatior
Capital expenditure- Integration activitie:
Network expansion funded by Connect America F

Grant funds received for network expansion from i@ America Fun

Cash transferred from escr¢
Other assets purchased and distributions recemet

Net cash used by investing activit

Cash flows provided from (used by) financing atitda:

Long-term debt borrowing

Financing costs pai

Long-term debt paymen

Premium paid to retire de

Dividends paic

Repayment of customer advances for construc
distributions to noncontrolling interests antest

Net cash provided from (used by) financing acka

Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equiv
Cash and cash equivalents at Janua

Cash and cash equivalents at Septembe

Supplemental cash flow informatic
Cash paid (received) during the period "
Interest
Income taxes (refund:

Nonr-cash investing and financing activits
Financing obligation for contribution of real prafe
to pension pla
Reduction of pension obligatic

2012 2011
$ 124,11 112,36(
962,76: 1,062,15!
12,95( 10,72
24,22( 22,51¢
71,06: -
7,04( (3,320)
59,79: 20,21¢
19,94 16,16:
(131,02) (36,45¢)
9,42¢ 68,29’
1,160,28! 1,272,65
(571,10) (636,569
(38,769) (62,64)
(854) -
47,98¢ -

47 ,35¢ 26,58¢
(12,25 (4,350)
(527,63)) (676,979
1,100,001 ;
(22,759 -
(571,47)) (78,990
(52,56() -
(299,54 (559,80:)
(12,919 (2,339
140,74¢ (641,12f)
773,39 (45,44¢)
326,09 251,26:
$  1,099,48: 205,81°
$ 44512 447,64
$ 4,00: (16,247
$ - 58,10
$ - (58,100)

The accompanying Notes are an integral part oeti@mnsolidated Financial Statements.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)
FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policie
(a) Basis of Presentation and Use of Estime

Frontier Communications Corporation and its sulbsids are referred to as “we,” “us,” “our,” “Froetj” or the “Company’in this
report. Our interim unaudited consolidated finahstatements have been prepared in accordanceaadtbunting principles genere
accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GA&RI should be read in conjunction with the cadstéd financial statements ¢
notes included in our Annual Report on FormKl@er the year ended December 31, 2011. Certaitassifications of balanc
previously reported have been made to conformeacthrent presentation. All significant intercompdralances and transactions
been eliminated in consolidation. These interimudlited consolidated financial statements includl@djustments (consisting of norr
recurring accruals) considered necessary, in tl@aypof Frontiers management, to present fairly the results forikerim period
shown. Revenues, net income and cash flows forirgayim periods are not necessarily indicativeresfults that may be expected
the full year. For our interim financial statemeassof and for the period ended September 30, 204 2valuated subsequent events
transactions for potential recognition or discl@sthrough the date that we filed this quarterlyorepn Form 109 with the Securitie
and Exchange Commission (SEC).

The preparation of our interim financial statemeimtsconformity with U.S. GAAP requires managemeatmake estimates a
assumptions that affect (i) the reported amountassits and liabilities at the date of the findnstatements, (i) the disclosure
contingent assets and liabilities, and (iii) thpaed amounts of revenue and expenses duringepweting period. Actual results v
differ from those estimates. Estimates and juddmenre used when accounting for allowance for dallaiccounts, impairment
long{ived assets, intangible assets, depreciation amattezation, income taxes, purchase price allooati@ontingencies, and pens
and other postretirement benefits, among othergai@einformation and footnote disclosures havenbercluded and/or conden:
pursuant to SEC rules and regulations.

(b) Revenue Recognitiol

Revenue is recognized when services are provideghen products are delivered to customers. Revémaieis billed in advan
includes: monthly recurring network access servispecial access services and monthly recurringl liwe and unlimited fixed lor
distance bundle charges. The unearned portiohesktfees is initially deferred as a componenttioéroliabilities on our consolidat
balance sheet and recognized as revenue over tiogl pleat the services are provided. Revenueithbilled in arrears includes: non-
recurring network access services, switched acsessces, non-recurring local services and Idiggjance services. The earned
unbilled portion of these fees is recognized asmee in our consolidated statements of operatindsaacrued in accounts receivabl
the period that the services are provided. Exeizes are recognized as a liability when billegstallation fees and their related di
and incremental costs are initially deferred amubgaized as revenue and expense over the averagefta customer relationship.
recognize as current period expense the portiamstdillation costs that exceeds installation feemnee.

As required by law, the Company collects variougesafrom its customers and subsequently remitsethases to governmen
authorities. Substantially all of these taxes @&eorded through the consolidated balance sheepeersdnted on a net basis in
consolidated statements of operations. We aldeatdlniversal Service Fund (USF) surcharges frastamers (primarily federal US
that we have recorded on a gross basis in our tidasedl statements of operations and includedvuemee and other operating expel
at $29.0 million and $24.5 million, and $87.5 naifliand $78.7 million, for the three and nine morghded September 30, 2012
2011, respectively.

(c) Goodwill and Other Intangible

Intangibles represent the excess of purchase pvieethe fair value of identifiable tangible nesets acquired. We undertake studie
determine the fair values of assets and liabilitieguired and allocate purchase prices to assdtfiadnilities, including property, pla
and equipment, goodwill and other identifiable ingi#bles. We annually (during the fourth quarternwre frequently, if appropria
examine the carrying value of our goodwill and &radime to determine whether there are any impairlosses. We test for goodv
impairment at the “operating segmeidVel, as that term is defined in U.S. GAAP. Opemting segments consist of the follow
regions: Central, Midwest, National, Northeast, tBeast and West. Our operating segments are aggtegnto one reportat
segment .
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)
FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Company amortizes finite lived intangible asseter their estimated useful lives and review# sotangible assets at least annt
to assess whether any potential impairment exigisahether factors exist that would necessitateaage in useful life and a differ

amortization period.

Recent Accounting Literature:

Fair Value Measurements

In May 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards ro&ASB) issued Accounting Standards Update NA.124 (ASU 2011-04),Fair
Value Measurements: Amendments to Achieve Commadn WValue Measurement and Disclosure Requirementd)i@. GAAP an
IFRSs” (ASC Topic 820). ASU 20104 changes the wording used to describe many ofettpgirements in U.S. GAAP for measuring
value and for disclosing information about fairu@imeasurements to ensure consistency betweeGBAAR and IFRS. ASU 20104 als¢
expands the disclosures for fair value measurentbatsare estimated using significant unobservélbdeel 3) inputs. This new guidar
was to be applied prospectively, and was effedtivénterim and annual periods beginning after Delser 15, 2011. The Company adoj
ASU 2011-04 in the first quarter of 2012 with ngoimet on our financial position, results of openasior cash flows.

Presentation of Comprehensive Income

In June 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standahgdate No. 2011-05 (ASU 2011-05)C8mprehensive Income: Presentatiol
Comprehensive Income,” (ASC Topic 220). ASU 2@Bleliminates the option to report other comprelvenscome and its component:
the statement of changes in equity. ASU 2011-0Gireg that all non-owner changes in stockholdecglity be presented in either a sit
continuous statement of comprehensive income owim separate but consecutive statements. This nédagce was to be appli
retrospectively, and was effective for interim arthual periods beginning after December 15, 20d1December 2011, the FASB iss!
ASU No. 201112 that defers the effective date for amendmentbdopresentation of reclassifications of items @uaccumulated oth
comprehensive income in ASU 2011-05. The Compalopted ASU 201D5 in the first quarter of 2012 with no impact aur dinancia
position, results of operations or cash flows.

Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets

In July 2012, the FASB issued Accounting Standajgdate No. 2012-02 (ASU 2012-02), “Intangibles—Geitidand Other —Testinc
Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairmen{ASC Topic 350). ASU 20122 permits an entity to first assess qualitativedies tc
determine whether it is more likely than not thatiadefinitelived intangible asset is impaired as a basis ftemnining whether it
necessary to perform a quantitative impairment t&$te more-likely-thamot threshold is defined as having a likelihoochafre than 5
percent. This amendment also gives an entity i@ not to calculate annually the fair value ofiadefinitelived intangible asset if tl
entity can determine that it is not more likelyrih#ot that the asset is impaired. If an entityahodes that it is not more likely than not
the indefinite-lived intangible asset is impairéaign the entity is not required to take furtheliact While ASU 201202 is effective fc
annual and interim impairment tests performed fecal years beginning after September 15, 2013y eatoption is permitted. T!
Company is currently evaluating the impact of AS)1202 on its future impairment tests and early adopigsounder consideration. We
not expect the adoption of ASU 2012-02 to haveiarmpact on our financial position, results of opinas or cash flows.

The Transaction:
On July 1, 2010, we acquired the defined assetsliahilities of the local exchange business anatesl landline activities of Veriz
Communications Inc. (Verizon) in Arizona, ldahdjnibis, Indiana, Michigan, Nevada, North Carolir@hio, Oregon, South Carolit
Washington, West Virginia and Wisconsin and in jomd of California bordering Arizona, Nevada an@&@m (collectively, the Territorie:
including Internet access and long distance sesvéerl broadband video provided to designated ces®in the Territories (the Acquir
Business). Frontier was considered the acquirdtefcquired Business for accounting purposes.




PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)
FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have accounted for our acquisition of approxétya#.0 million access lines from Verizon (the Tsaction) using the guidance inclu
in Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topics8@We incurred approximately $4.5 million and $6mdlion, and $68.2 million ar
$100.9 million of integration related costs in cention with the Transaction during the three amgt mhonths ended September 30, 201:
2011, respectively. Such costs are required texipensed as incurred and are reflected in “Integraiosts”in our consolidated stateme
of operations.

(4) _Accounts Receivable:
The components of accounts receivable, net arellas/é:
($.in thousands) September 30, 20! December 31, 201
Retail and Wholesa $ 624,85. $ 639,84.
Other 40,44¢ 52,36
Less: Allowance for doubtful accour (107,72Y (107,049
Accounts receivable, r $ 557,57 $ 585,15

Retail and wholesale accounts receivable and tloevahce for doubtful accounts are presented net fHir value adjustment related
purchase accounting of $9.8 million at December2B1L1. No further fair value adjustment was reggiias of the quarter ended March
2012. We maintain an allowance for estimated béxdsdeased on our estimate of our ability to colsextounts receivable. Bad debt expe
which is recorded as a reduction to revenue, was3®aillion and $19.3 million for the three mon#isded September 30, 2012 and 2
respectively, and $61.5 million and $65.7 milli@n the nine months ended September 30, 2012 ar B8spectively.

Amounts for retail and wholesale accounts recewas of December 31, 2011 have been revised t@mrortb the current presentati
reflecting a reduction of $31.0 million for customlume discounts with a right of offset to thesmamers accounts receivable. There®
a similar reduction to other current liabilitiestive balance sheet.

(5) _Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment, net is as follows:

($in thousands) September 30, 20! December 31, 201

Property, plant and equipme $ 14,133,93 $ 13,638,13

Less: Accumulated depreciati (6,651,03) (6,090,61)
$ 7,482,90! $ 7,547,52:

Property, plant and equipment,

Depreciation expense is principally based on thepsite group method. Depreciation expense wa8.92aillion and $226.7 million, ai
$628.8 million and $671.2 million for the three anmhe months ended September 30, 2012 and 20lfeatdeely. As a result of i
independent study of the estimated remaining usefes of our plant assets, we adopted new estoinamaining useful lives for cert:
plant assets as of October 1, 2011.




PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)
FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(6) _Goodwill andDther Intangibles:
The components of goodwill and other intangiblet,are as follows:

($in thousands) September 30, 20! December 31, 201
Goodwill: $ 6,337,71! $ 6,337,71
Other Intangibles

Customer bas $ 2,697,76. $ 2,697,41

Software license 105,01¢ 105,01¢

Trade name and licen 135,28! 135,28!

Other intangible 2,938,06' 2,937,701

Less: Accumulated amortizati (1,307,10) (973,21)

Total other intangibles, r $ 1,630,96 $ 1,964,50!

Amortization expense was $88.5 million and $125iion, and $333.9 million and $391.0 million fohe three and nine months en
September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Amaidizeexpense primarily represents the amortizatbrintangible assets (primar
customer base) that were acquired in the Transabtised on a fair value of $2.5 billion and a uskfiel of nine years for the resident
customer base and 12 years for the business custmse, amortized on an accelerated method. Aratidh expense included $1
million and $41.1 million for the nine months end&dptember 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively, forrération associated with cert;
Frontier legacy properties, which were fully amoetd in March 2012.

(7) _Fair Value of Financial Instruments:
The following table summarizes the carrying amowams estimated fair values for lotgrm debt at September 30, 2012 and Decemb
2011. For the other financial instruments, repriag cash, accounts receivable, ldegn debt due within one year, accounts payabli
other current liabilities, the carrying amounts rpmate fair value due to the relatively short onites of those instruments. Other eq
method investments, for which market values areeadily available, are carried at cost, which agjpnates fair value.

The fair value of our long-term debt is estimatedddl upon quoted market prices at the reportiregfdathose financial instruments.

September 30, 201 December 31, 201
Carrying Carrying
(% in thousands) Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Long-term debi $ 8,257,59¢ $ 8,650,91¢ $ 8,205,84: $ 7,958,87:
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(8) Long-Term Debt:
The activity in our long-term debt from December 2Q11 to September 30, 2012 is summarized asifsilo

Nine months endec

September 30, 201 Interest
Rate* at
December 31 New September 30  September 30
($in thousands) 2011 Payments Borrowings 2012 2012
Senior Unsecured De $ 832577 $ (570,69) $ 1,100,000 $ 8,855,08 7.88%
Industrial Developmer
Revenue Bonc 13,55( - - 13,55( 6.3%
Rural Utilities Servict
Loan Contract 10,197 (787) - 9,41¢ 6.15%
TOTAL LONG -TERM DEBT ¢ 834952 $ (571,47) $ 1,100,000 ¢ 8,878,04 7.81%
Less: Debt Discour (49,669) (23,905
Less: Current Portio (94,016 (596,544
$ 8,205,84 $ 8,257,59

* Interest rate includes amortization of debt issuance costs and debt premiums or discounts. The interest rates at September 30, 2012 represent a

weighted average of multiple issuances.
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Additional information regarding our Senior UnsemiDebt is as follows:

($.in thousands) September 30, 201 December 31, 201
Principal Interest Principal Interest
Outstanding Rate Outstanding Rate

Senior Notes an
Debentures Dut

1/15/201% $ 502,65! 6.250% $ 580,72« 6.250%
5/1/2014 200,00 8.250% 600,00 8.250%
3/15/201¢ 300,00 6.625% 300,00 6.625%
4115/2015 * 450,50( 7.875% 500,00 7.875%
10/14/2016 ** 531,870 3.095% (Variable 575,00 3.175% (Variable
4/15/2017 * 1,100,001 8.250% 1,100,001 8.250%
10/1/201¢ 600,00 8.125% 600,00 8.125%
3/15/201¢ 434,00( 7.125% 434,00( 7.125%
4115/202( 1,100,001 8.500% 1,100,00 8.500%
7/1/2021 500,00 9.250% - -
4115/202: 500,00 8.750% 500,00 8.750%
1/15/2023 * 600,00 7.125% - -
11/1/202¢ 138,00( 7.000% 138,00( 7.000%
8/15/202¢ 1,73¢ 6.800% 1,73¢ 6.800%
1/15/2027 345,85¢ 7.875% 345,85¢ 7.875%
8/15/2031 945,32! 9.000% 945,32! 9.000%
10/1/203¢ 62¢ 7.680% 62¢ 7.680%
7/1/203E 125,00( 7.450% 125,00( 7.450%
10/1/204¢ 193,50( 7.050% 193,50( 7.050%
8,569,08 8,039,77.

Subsidiary Senior Note
and Debentures Du

12/1/201: 36,00( 8.050% 36,00( 8.050%
2/15/202¢ 200,00( 6.730% 200,00( 6.730%
10/15/202¢ 50,00( 8.400% 50,00( 8.400%

Total $ 8,855,08: 7.88% $ 8,325,77. 7.93%

* See Note 18 — Subsequent Events.

** Represents borrowings under the Credit Agreemtit CoBank.
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On August 15, 2012, the Company completed a registeffering of $600 million aggregate principal @mt of 7.125% senior notes (
2023, issued at a price of 100% of their princgralbunt. We received net proceeds of approxim&e88.1 million from the offering aft
deducting underwriting discounts and offering exggn The Company will use the net proceeds fras#ite of the notes to repurchas
retire its existing indebtedness or for generapooate purposes.

On May 17, 2012, the Company completed a registefiing of $500 million aggregate principal amouf 9.250% senior unsecul
notes due 2021, issued at a price of 100% of fréicipal amount. We received net proceeds of @pprately $489.6 million from tt
offering after deducting underwriting discounts amffering expenses. The Company also commenceehdet offer to purchase 1
maximum aggregate principal amount of its 8.250%i@eNotes due 2014 (the "2014 Notes") and its 5%87Senior Notes due 2015 (
"April 2015 Notes" and, together with the 2014 Nptine "Notes") that it could purchase for up t6GHillion in cash. The 2014 Notes |
an effective interest cost of 10.855%, reflecting tact that such notes were issued at a discouipril 2009.

On June 1, 2012, the Company accepted for purchB@ million aggregate principal amount of 2014 é¢otendered for total considera
of $446.0 million. On June 18, 2012, Frontier gted for purchase $49.5 million aggregate princgrabunt of April 2015 Notes tende
for total consideration of $54.0 million. Frontiased proceeds from the sale of its previously anoed offering of $500.0 million
9.250% Senior Notes due 2021, plus cash on harmirthase the Notes. As a result of the succetesfder offer, the amount of 2014 Nc
and April 2015 Notes outstanding as of SeptembeR302 were $200.0 million and $450.5 million, resjively.

In connection with our tender offer and repurchafsine Notes, the Company recognized a loss of2b8#llion on the early extinguishme
of debt during the second quarter of 2012. We edsognized losses of $0.5 million and $2.1 millduring the third quarter and first n
months of 2012, respectively, for $78.1 milliort@tal open market repurchases of our 6.25% Serates\due 2013.

The Company has a credit agreement (the Creditehgeat) with CoBank, ACB, as administrative agesddl arranger and a lender, anc
other lenders party thereto for a $575.0 millionise unsecured term loan facility with a final maty of October 14, 2016. The eni
facility was drawn upon execution of the Credit égment in October 2011. Repayment of the outstgngiiincipal balance is made
quarterly installments in the amount of $14,375,8@ich commenced on March 31, 2012, with the raingioutstanding principal balar
to be repaid on the final maturity date. Borrowinggler the Credit Agreement bear interest baseth@margins over the Base Rate
defined in the Credit Agreement) or LIBOR, at thecgon of the Company. Interest rate margins utlgke facility (ranging from 0.875%
2.875% for Base Rate borrowings and 1.875% to 3@#& LIBOR borrowings) are subject to adjustmemésed on the Total Levere
Ratio of the Company, as such term is defined en@nedit Agreement. The current pricing on thisility is LIBOR plus 2.875%. Tt
maximum permitted leverage ratio is 4.5 times.

We have a $750.0 million revolving credit facilitAs of September 30, 2012, we had not made anpWworgs utilizing this facility. Th
terms of the credit facility are set forth in thedit agreement (the Revolving Credit Agreemendled as of March 23, 2010, among
Company, the Lenders party thereto, and JPMorgas€Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent. Assodafiacility fees under the cre
facility will vary from time to time depending omé Companys credit rating (as defined in the Revolving Crelifreement) and we
0.625% per annum as of September 30, 2012. Thé €aedity is scheduled to terminate on JanuarQ14. During the term of the cre
facility, the Company may borrow, repay and rebarfands, and may obtain letters of credit, subjectustomary borrowing conditiol
Loans under the credit facility will bear interésised on the alternate base rate or the adjus®OR.Irate (each as determined in
Revolving Credit Agreement), at the Companglection, plus a margin specified in the Revayvi@redit Agreement based on
Company'’s credit rating. Letters of credit issuedier the credit facility will also be subject tefethat vary depending on the Company’
credit rating. The credit facility is available fgeneral corporate purposes but may not be useehdodividend payments.

We also have a $40.0 million unsecured letter eflitrfacility, as amended. The terms of the ledfecredit facility are set forth in a Cre
Agreement, dated as of September 8, 2010, amonGdhegany, the Lenders party thereto, and Deutselmk BG, New York Branch (tt
Bank), as Administrative Agent and Issuing Banle (tietter of Credit Agreement). An initial letter afedit for $190.0 million was issuec
the West Virginia Public Service Commission to gudee certain of our capital investment commitmémté/est Virginia in connectic
with the Transaction. The initial commitments undlee Letter of Credit Agreement expired on SeptemP0, 2011, with the Ba
exercising its option to extend $100.0 million leé ttcommitments to September 20, 2012. On Septebih@012, the Company entered
an amendment to the Letter of Credit Agreemenkterel $40 million of the commitments to Septemb®&rZD13. Two letters of credit, ¢
for $20 million expiring March 2013 and the other $20 million expiring September 2013, were issoedSeptember 13, 2012. 7
Company is required to pay an annual facility feete available commitment, regardless of usade cbvenants binding on the Comp
under the terms of the amended Letter of CrediteAgrent are substantially similar to those in then@any’s other credit facilitie
including limitations on liens, substantial assdés and mergers, subject to customary exceptimhshaesholds.
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As of September 30, 2012, we were in complianch alitof our debt and credit facility financial cmvants.

Our principal payments for the next five yearsasdollows as of September 30, 2012:

(9) Income Taxes:

Principal
($in thousands) Payment:
2012 (remaining three montr $ 50,47(
2013 $ 560,55(
2014 $ 257,91¢
2015 $ 808,44:
2016 $ 345,46t
2017 $ 1,100,50:

The following is a reconciliation of the provisiéor income taxes computed at federal statutorysratehe effective rates:

For the three months ended For the nine months end

September 3( September 3(
2012 2011 2012 2011

Consolidated tax provision at federal statutorg 35.0% 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Reversal of tax credi - - - 5.
State income tax provisions, net of federal inct

tax benefi 4! 9.t 3. 3.
Tax reserve adjustme (7.1 (91.2 (4.0 (8.1
All other, net 0.¢ 1. 0.. 0.
Effective tax rate 33.3% (45.2% 34.8% 37.3%

Income taxes for both the third quarter and thee mmonths ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 inthedeeversal of uncertain 1
Income taxes for the nine months endegt&aber 30, 2011 includes the impac
a $10.5 million charge resulting from the enactn@niMay 25, 2011 of the Michigan Corporate Incona Which eliminated certain futt

positions of $7.8 million and $14.0 million, respeely.

tax deductions.

The amount of our uncertain tax positions whoseitgaf limitations are expected to expire durihg hext twelve months and which wc

affect our effective tax rate is $6.3 million asSg#fptember 30, 2012.
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(10) Net Income Per Common Share:
The reconciliation of the net income per commorraltalculation is as follows:

For the three months end For the nine months end
($ and sharesin thousands, except per share amounts) September 3( September 3(
2012 2011 2012 2011

Net income used for basic and diluted earn

per common shart
Net income attributable to common shareholdersrohfrer $ 67,000 $ 20,39 % 111,75  $ 107,36
Less: Dividends paid on unvested restricted stveards (717) (914) (2,189 (2,83F
Total basic and diluted net income attributabledmmon

shareholders of Frontier $ 66,28: $ 1948. $ 109,56¢ $ 104,53:
Basic earnings per common she
Total weighted average shares and unvested reststbck award

outstandin¢- basic 998,48t 995,18t 997,43 994,64.
Less: Weighted average unvested restricted stvekds (7,197 (4,929 (7,137) (4,917
Total weighted average shares outstanding - basic 991,29! 990,25¢ 990,30( 989,72!
Net income per share attributable to common shédehoof Frontie $ 0.07 $ 0.0z $ 0.11 $ 0.11
Diluted earnings per common sha
Total weighted average shares outstan- basic 991,29! 990,25¢ 990,30( 989,72!
Effect of dilutive share 162 53t 667 1,47¢
Effect of dilutive stock units - 49C - 49(
Total weighted average shares outstanding - diluted 991,45t 991,28 990,96 991,69:
Net income per share attributable to common shédehoof Frontie $ 0.07 $ 0.0z $ 0.11 $ 0.11

Stock Options
For both the three and nine months ended SepteBih&012 and 2011, options to purchase 540,00@sl{at exercise prices ranging fi

$8.19 to $14.15) and 930,000 shares (at exercisespranging from $8.19 to $14.15), respectivedguable under employee compens:
plans were excluded from the computation of dilgachings per share (EPS) for those periods be¢hesexercise prices were greater"
the average market price of our common stock ametefore, the effect would be antidilutive. Incaudbting diluted EPS, we apply !
treasury stock method and include future unearpetpensation as part of the assumed proceeds.

Sock Units
At September 30, 2012 and 2011, we had 788,16%80M18 stock units, respectively, issued undeMNmam-Employee DirectordDeferrec
Fee Equity Plan (Deferred Fee Plan) and the Noni&yep Directors’ Equity Incentive Plan (DirectoEjuity Plan).

(11) Stock Plans:
At September 30, 2012, we had five stock-based eosgiion plans under which grants were made anddawamained outstandingNo
further awards may be granted under three of thesplthe 1996 Equity Incentive Plan, the Amendeti Restated 2000 Equity Incent
Plan (the 2000 EIP) and the Deferred Fee Plan.epte®nber 30, 2012, there were 12,540,761 sharbsragd for grant and 3,112,4
shares available for grant under the 2009 Equitgritive Plan (the 2009 EIP) and the Directors’ EgBlan.

Performance Shares

On February 15, 2012, the Company’s Compensatignritiee, in consultation with the other non-managetirectors of the Comparsy’
Board of Directors and the Committee’s indepen@swtutive compensation consultant, adopted theFrentier LongTerm Incentive Ple
(the “LTIP”). LTIP awards are granted in the forfperformance shares. The LTIP is offered under@ompanys 2009 Equity Incentiy
Plan and participants consist of senior vice pergisland above. The LTIP awards have performanagkanand time-vesting conditions.
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Beginning in 2012, during the first 90 days of eethyear performance period (a “Measurement Peyiadtarget number of performair
shares are awarded to each LTIP participant witheet to the Measurement Period. The performamtgasn under the LTIP are (1) ann
targets for operating cash flow based on a goatlsehg the first 90 days of each year in the thyear Measurement Period and (2
overall performance “modifier” set during the fi@ days of the Measurement Period, based on thgp&ay's total return to stockholde
(i.e., Total Shareholder Return or “TSR”) relatteethe Diversified Telecommunications Services @r¢@ICS Code 501010) for the three-
year Measurement Period. Operating cash flow padace is determined at the end of each year andrthual results will be average
the end of the thregear Measurement Period to determine the prelimimamber of shares earned under the LTIP awaré T®F
performance measure is then applied to decreasem@ase payouts based on the Compatiytee year relative TSR performance. L
awards, to the extent earned, will be paid ouhéform of common stock shortly following the erfdhe three-year Measurement Period.

On February 15, 2012, the Compensation Committaetgd 930,020 performance shares under the LTIFh&20122014 Measureme
Period and set the operating cash flow performagoed for the first year in that Measurement Pedaod the TSR modifier for the thrgeal
Measurement Period. The number of shares of constumk earned at the end of the thyear Measurement Period may be more ol
than the number of target performance shares grasta result of operating cash flow and TSR perdmice. An executive must mainta
satisfactory performance rating during the MeasemnPeriod and must be employed by the Companyhetehd of the thregeal
Measurement Period in order for the award to vése Compensation Committee will determine the nendf shares earned for the 2012-
2014 Measurement Period in February 2015.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2012,dahg&ny recognized an expense of $0.3 million ferLthlP.

Restricted Sock
The following summary presents information regagdimvested restricted stock as of September 302 20id changes during the r
months then ended with regard to restricted stodeuthe 2009 EIP:

Weighted
Average
Grant
Number of Date Aggregate
Shares Fair Value Fair Value
Balance at January 1, 20 4,847,00( $ 8.4 $ 24,962,00(
Restricted stock grante 3,941,00( $ 4,17 $ 19,390,00(
Restricted stock vestt (1,332,000 $ 8.84 $ 6,554,00(
Restricted stock forfeite (289,000 $ 6.0¢
Balance at September 30, 2( 7,167,00C $ 6.0¢ $ 35,259,00(

For purposes of determining compensation expehseatr value of each restricted stock grant isrested based on the average of the
and low market price of a share of our common statkhe date of grant. Total remaining unrecognizatipensation cost associated
unvested restricted stock awards at September0d@, as $28.9 million and the weighted averageogesver which this cost is expectel
be recognized is approximately two years.

Shares granted during the first nine months of 2@tdled 1,721,000. The total fair value of shagemted and vested at Septembe
2011 was approximately $10.5 million and $6.9 millirespectively. The total fair value of unvestestricted stock at September 30, Z
was $29.7 million. The weighted average grant €&tevalue of restricted shares granted duringrtine months ended September 30, :
was $9.41.
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Sock Options
The following summary presents information regagdoutstanding stock options as of September 302 201 changes during the r
months then ended with regard to options unde2@@® EIP and the 2009 EIP:

Weighted Weighted
Shares Average Average Aggregate
Subject to Option Price Remaining Intrinsic
Option Per Share Lifein Years Value
Balance at January 1, 20 895,00C $ 9.94 1.3 $ -
Options grante: - $ -
Options exercise - $ -
Options canceled, forfeited or laps (355,000) $ 8.3t
Balance at September 30, 2( 540,00C $ 11.0¢ 11 $ -
Exercisable at September 30, 2( 540,00C $ 11.0¢ 11 $ -

There were no options granted during the first mmanths of 2011. There were 10,000 options exedcduring that period with ca
received of $0.1 million. There was no intrinsaue for the stock options outstanding and exeltesat September 30, 2011.

(12) Seagment Information:
We operate in one reportable segment. Frontieviges both regulated and unregulated voice, dath\éaeo services to resident
business and wholesale customers and is typidalyncumbent provider in its service areas.

As permitted by U.S. GAAP, we have utilized the raggtion criteria to combine our operating segmémtsause all of our Front
properties share similar economic characterisiicthat they provide the same products and sert@ssmilar customers using compar
technologies in all of the states in which we ofeerd he regulatory structure is generally similBifferences in the regulatory regime ¢
particular state do not materially impact the ecoiwocharacteristics or operating results of a paldir property.

(13) Investment Income (Loss):
The components of investment income (loss) arelisifs:

For the three months end For the nine months end
September 3( September 3(
($in thousands) 2012 2011 2012 2011
Interest and dividend incon $ 32: $ 87 $ 3,15¢ $ 2,971
Investment gail - - 9,78( 1,071
Equity earnings (los: - (7539) (522) (1,419
Total investment income (los $ 32¢ $ (66€) $ 12417 $ 2,624

During the second quarter of 2012, we recognizgain of $9.8 million associated with cash receiired@onnection with our previous
written-off investment in Adelphia.
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(14) Other Income (Loss), Net:
The components of other income (loss), net arelisfs:

For the three months ended For the nine months ended
September 3( September 3(
($in thousands) 2012 2011 2012 2011
Gain on expiration/settlement of customer adval $ 4,33 % 1,26¢ $ 7,79¢ $ 7,60¢
All other, net (56) 234 (1,22 (190
Total other income (loss), r $ 427¢ $ 150 $ 6,577 $ 7,41t

(15) _Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive income consists of net income aret gins and losses affecting shareholders’ invesstiaind pension/OPEB liabilities
that, under U.S. GAAP, are excluded from net income

The components of accumulated other comprehenssge het of tax are as follows:

September 31  December 31

($ in thousands) 2012 2011

Pension cost $ 552,89 $ 575,16:
Postretirement cos 43,70¢ 41,81
Deferred taxes on pension and OPEB ¢ (221,93) (230,16)
All other 14¢€ 15C

$ 374,82 $ 386,96

Our other comprehensive income for the threerane months ended September 30, 2012 and 2@Klfddlows:

For the three months ended Septembe

2012 2011
Before-Tax Tax Expense  Net-of-Tax Before-Tax Tax Expense Net-of-Tax
($in thousands) Amount (Benefit) Amount Amount (Benefit) Amount
Amortization of pension an
postretirement cos-
other comprehensive incor $ 6,08 $ 3,77: $ 2,30¢ $ 3,332 $ - 8 3,334
For the nine months ended Septembel
2012 2011
Before-Tax Tax Expense  Net-of-Tax Before-Tax Tax Expense Net-of-Tax
Amount (Benefit) Amount Amount (Benefit) Amount
Amortization of pension an
postretirement cos $ 20,37C $ 8,22¢ $ 12,14:  $ 10,00: $ 1,19¢ $ 8,80«
All other - - - (480) - (480)
Other comprehensive incor $ 20,37( $ 8,22t $ 12,14;. $ 9,52: $ 1,19¢ $ 8,324
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Pension Benefit Pension Benefit
For the three months end For the nine months end
September 3( September 3(
2012 2011 2012 2011

($inthousands)
Components of net periodic pension benefit
Service cos $ 11,78: $ 9,61t $ 32,76¢ $ 28,84
Interest cost on projected benefit obligat 19,20 21,17 58,52 63,51
Expected return on plan ass (23,655 (25,589 (71,833 (76,76€
Amortization of prior service cost /(cred (5C (5C (150 (15C
Amortization of unrecognized lo: 6,84 4,43 22,41 13,30
Net periodic pension benefit cc $ 14,12¢ $ 9,58: $ 41,72 $ 28,75

Postretirement Benefi
Other Than Pensions (OPE

Postretirement Benefi
Other Than Pensions (OPE

For the three months end

For the nine months end

September 3( September 3(
2012 2011 2012 2011

($inthousands)

Components of net periodic postretirement benefit

Service cos $ 2,99¢ $ 4,206 $ 8,10¢ $ 12,66:
Interest cost on projected benefit obligat 4,46 5,98 13,38 18,64
Expected return on plan ass (¢ (79 (129 (242
Amortization of prior service cost/(cred (2,545 (2,552 (7,551 (7,651
Amortization of unrecognized lo: 1,83 60 5,65 3,60
Net periodic postretirement benefit ¢ $ 6,721 $ 8,16¢ $ 19,46 $ 27,01

During the first nine months of 2012 and 2011, apitalized $11.7 million and $9.8 million, respeety, of pension and OPEB expe
into the cost of our capital expenditures, as th&<relate to our engineering and plant constnarttivities. Based on current assumpt
and plan asset values, we estimate that our 20dg€iggeand OPEB expenses will be between $80 miliott $85 million before amoul
capitalized into the cost of capital expenditurtgey were $58.3 million in 2011 before amounts tdiged into the cost of capi
expenditures). We made total net contributionsuppension plan for 2012 of $28.5 million, whigilects the positive impact of fundi
rate changes contained in the Highway InvestmehbA2012 and guidance from the IRS on August D3, 2related to valuation rates,
on September 11, 2012 related to lump sum methgakso Net contributions totaling $18.2 million neemade during the third quartel

2012 and $10.3 million was made in October 20There are no further contributions to be made 220

In connection with the completion of the Transattan July 1, 2010, certain employees were trarediefrom various Verizon pension
plans into 12 pension plans that were then mergigh the Frontier Communications Pension Plan (tfen)Peffective August 31,

2010. Assets of $438.8 million were transferred ifie Plan during the second half of 2010 andtasd#e5106.9 million were transferred
into the Plan in August 2011. Additionally, $74xlllion of assets were transferred into the Planrduthe first nine months of 2012. The

asset transfers from Verizon to the Plan have beepleted.

The Plan’s assets have increased from $1,258.¢om#it December 31, 2011 to $1,282.2 million attSeyber 30, 2012, an increase of
$24.2 million, or 2%. This increase is a resulpositive investment returns, cash contributionsl additional asset transfers from Verizon
for a combined total of $147.5 million, less behpéiyments of $123.3 million during the first nimenths of 2012.
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(17) Commitments and Contingencies:
We anticipate total capital expenditures for buseneperations of approximately $750 million to $Ti#lion for 2012. Although we frol
time to time make shoterm purchasing commitments to vendors with respethese expenditures, we generally do not enter firm,
written contracts for such activities.

In connection with the Transaction, the Companyuraertaken activities to plan and implement nekveord systems conversions as we
other initiatives to integrate the operations aeduce costs. In the fourth quarter of 2011, then@my converted all of the remaining
states of the Acquired Business onto the Compgalegacy financial and human resources systemsca@meerted the operating system
four states of the Acquired Business to our legastems. In the first quarter of 2012, the Compsumgcessfully converted the opera
systems in the remaining nine states of the AcduBasiness to our legacy systems. Therefore, adanth 31, 2012, the Company |
completed its network and systems integration amte platform. While these conversions are comptbte Company continues to simp
its processes, eliminate redundancies and furthdhrce its cost structure while improving its custorservice capabilities. The Comp
incurred $68.2 million of operating expenses fdegmation costs and $38.8 million in capital expgands related to integration activit
during the first nine months of 2012. For the fydlar of 2012, the Company currently expects tairiraperating expenses and ca|
expenditures of approximately $80 million and $50lliom, respectively, related to completing its egtation and cost savir
initiatives. Our integration costs and relatedited@xpenditures will be completed by the end @12

In addition, the Federal Communications Commisgie@C) and certain state regulatory commissiong;onnection with granting the
approvals of the Transaction, specified certainitabexpenditure and operating requirements for doguired Territories for specifi
periods of time postiosing. These requirements focus primarily ontaier capital investment commitments to expand hvaac
availability to at least 85% of the households tigtoout the acquired Territories with minimum dovadospeeds of 3 megabits per set
(Mbps) by the end of 2013 and 4 Mbps by the en?l0d. As of September 30, 2012, we had expandeatiband availability in excess
1 Mbps to 84% of the households throughout the ieedT erritories, in excess of 3 Mbps to 80% of timeiseholds throughout the acqu
Territories, and in excess of 4 Mbps to 78% offtbaseholds throughout the acquired Territories.

To satisfy all or part of certain capital investthenmmitments to three state regulatory commissiamsplaced an aggregate amour
$115.0 million in cash into escrow accounts anchioled a letter of credit for $190 million in 2018nother $72.4 million of cash in
escrow account (with a cash balance of $47.6 millind an associated liability of $0.2 million asS&ptember 30, 2012 that is reflecte
Other liabilities) was acquired in connection wiitle Transaction to be used for service qualityatiites in the state of West Virginia. As
September 30, 2012, $90.5 million had been relefsadescrow and the Company had a restricted loaksimce in these escrow accoun
the aggregate amount of $97.3 million. In Octol@t2 we received an additional $25.6 million thasweleased from an escrow accou
the state of Washington, which concludes the esgmtition process in that state. In November 20dreceived funds from the releas
another $29.1 million from escrow accounts in ttaesof West Virginia. In addition, as of Septem@, 2012, the letter of credit had b
reduced to $40.0 million. The aggregate amourthe$e escrow accounts and the letter of credit auilitinue to decrease over time
Frontier makes the required capital expendituréberrespective states.

In our normal course of business we have obligatiamder certain nocancelable arrangements for services. During hihid guarter ¢
2012, we entered into a take or pay arrangemerthéopurchase of future long distance and cargeriges. Our total commitments un
the arrangement are $74.8 million, $132.0 milli$h41.8 million and $140.8 million for the years eddecember 31, 2012, 2013, 2014
2015, respectively. As of September 30, 2012, xpeet to utilize the services included within thremagement and no liability for the te
or pay provision has been recorded.

The Company has entered into an agreement to upgradgnificant portion of its existing vehicledte As of September 30, 2012,
Company has accepted delivery of 679 new vehicidseapects to accept delivery of approximately @,88ditional new vehicles by Mai
31, 2013. The new vehicles expected to be leasddruhis program will represent approximately 5806ur vehicle fleet. The minimt
lease commitment for each vehicle is 1 year andethses are renewable at the Compsumption. The total annual lease expense forf
the new vehicles is expected to be approximately@ahillion on an annualized basis upon the acoegtaf the remaining vehicles.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We are party to various legal proceedings arismthé normal course of our business covering a wadge of matters or types of cla
including, but not limited to, general contractilifg disputes, rights of access, tax, consumetemtion, trademark and patent infringem
employment, regulatory and tort. Litigation is gdb to uncertainty and the outcome of individuattars is not predictable. However,
believe that the ultimate resolution of all suchtters, after considering insurance coverage orratitemnities to which Frontier is entitl
will not have a material adverse effect on ourtiitial position, results of operations, or our céigWs.

We sold all of our utility businesses as of April2004. However, we have retained a potential manobligation associated with «
previous electric utility activities in the State\ermont. The Vermont Joint Owners (VJO), a catism of 14 Vermont utilities, includir
us, entered into a purchase power agreement witlid-Quebec in 1987. The agreement contains “stépergvisions that state if any V.
member defaults on its purchase obligation underctintract to purchase power from Hydoaebec, then the other VJO participants
assume responsibility for the defaulting party’arghon a pro-rata basis. Our peda share of the purchase power obligation is 1G%ny
member of the VJO defaults on its obligations urttierHydroQuebec agreement, then the remaining members of3fe including us
may be required to pay for a substantially lardears of the VIG total purchase power obligation for the remainofethe agreeme
(which runs through 2015). U.S. GAAP rules reqtiivat we disclosethe maximum potential amount of future paymentsl{scounted) th
guarantor could be required to make under the gtegd U.S. GAAP rules also state that we mustarskch disclosure “..even if the
likelihood of the guarantor’s having to make anyrpants under the guarantee is remoteAs'noted above, our obligation only arises
result of default by another VJO member, such amupankruptcy. Therefore, to satisfy the “maximpotential amount'disclosur
requirement we must assume that all members oWf@ simultaneously default, an unlikely scenarieegi that all VJO members
regulated utility providers with regulated costaeery. Despite the remote chance that such antessld occur, or that the State
Vermont could or would allow such an event, assgntivat all the members of the VJO defaulted on dgnii, 2012 and remained in def;
for the duration of the contract (another 4 yeans),estimate that our undiscounted purchase oldigdior 2012 through 2015 would
approximately $316.1 million. In such a scenatfie, Company would then own the power and could see&cover its costs. We would
this by seeking to recover our costs from the défegumembers and/or reselling the power to oth#éityuproviders or the northeast pov
grid. There is an active market for the sale ofv@o We could potentially lose money if we wereable to sell the power at cost.
caution that we cannot predict with any degreeeofainty any potential outcome.

(18) Subsequent Event
On October 1, 2012, the Company completed a registdebt offering of $250 million aggregate prirtimmount of 7.125% sen
unsecured notes due 2023, issued at a price 023@% of their principal amount, equating to an dffe yield of 6.551%. We receiv
net proceeds of approximately $255.9 million frdre bffering after deducting underwriting discouaitsl offering expenses. The notes
an additional issuance of, are fully fungible wihd form a single series voting together as onsscleth the $600 million aggreg
principal amount of 7.125% senior notes due 2028ed by the Company on August 15, 2012. The Caoynpall use the net procee
from the sale of the notes to repurchase or ri¢sirexisting indebtedness or for general corpgpatposes.

On October 1, 2012, the Company accepted for paec@5.7 million and $59.3 million aggregate ppatiamount of the April 2015 Not
and its 8.250% Senior Notes due 2017 (the 2017 d)lotespectively, in open market repurchases ftal tconsideration of $154
million. The repurchases resulted in a loss onethdy retirement of debt of approximately $19.3liomi to be recognized in the fou
quarter of 2012. As of October 31, 2012, approxétya$374.8 million aggregate principal amount loé tApril 2015 Notes and $1,04
million aggregate principal amount of the 2017 Natemained outstanding.
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Iltem 2. Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

Forward-Looking Statements

This quarterly report on Form 10-Q contains forwhraking statements that are subject to risks armainties that could cause actual re:
to differ materially from those expressed or imglia the statements. Statements that are notricistdacts are forwardboking statemen
made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of Rifieate Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1998Vords such as “believe,” “anticipate,”
“expect” and similar expressions are intended émiifly forward-looking statements. Forwdabking statements (including oral representati
are only predictions or statements of current plartich we review continuously. Forwalabking statements may differ from actual fur
results due to, but not limited to, and our futtesults may be materially affected by, potentigksior uncertainties. You should understanc

it is not possible to predict or identify all potih risks or uncertainties. We note the followimga partial list:

» The risk that the growth opportunities from theri&action may not be fully realized or may take kEmig realize than expecte

« The effects of greater than anticipated competitézuiring new pricing, marketing strategies or rm@aduct or service offerings and the
that we will not respond on a timely or profitablasis;

« Reductions in the number of our voice customersdhanot be offset by increases in broadband siblessrand sales of other products
services

« The effects of competition from cable, wireless atiter wireline carriers
« Our ability to maintain relationships with customeemployees or supplie

« The effects of ongoing changes in the regulatiothefcommunications industry as a result of fedenal state legislation and regulatior
changes in the enforcement or interpretation ofi $egislation and regulatio

« The effects of any unfavorable outcome with resgecany current or future legal, governmental ayutatory proceedings, audits
disputes

« The effects of changes in the availability of fedemnd state universal funding to us and our coitepst

« Our ability to adjust successfully to changes i ¢bmmunications industry and to implement stratefpr growth
« Continued reductions in switched access revenuagsesult of regulation, competition or technolegystitutions
« Our ability to effectively manage service qualitydur territories and meet mandated service qualétrics;

« Our ability to successfully introduce new produffeongs, including our ability to offer bundledrs&e packages on terms that are |
profitable to us and attractive to custom

« Changes in accounting policies or practices adopédhtarily or as required by generally acceptecbanting principles or regulatior
« Our ability to effectively manage our operationgemating expenses and capital expenditures, arepary, reduce or refinance our de
» The effects of changes in both general and locah@wic conditions on the markets that we serveclwban affect demand for our prodt

and services, customer purchasing decisions, taligity of revenues and required levels of capitgbenditures related to new construc
of residences and business

21




« The effects of technological changes and compatitio our capital expenditures and product and serefferings, including the lack
assurance that our network improvements will bécseht to meet or exceed the capabilities anditjuaf competing networks

« The effects of increased medical, pension and pygtment expenses and related funding requirem
« Changes in income tax rates, tax laws, regulatomalings, or federal or state tax assessm

« The effects of state regulatory cash managemetipea that could limit our ability to transfer baamong our subsidiaries or divide
funds up to the parent compai

« Our ability to successfully renegotiate union caats in 2012 and thereaft

« Changes in pension plan assumptions and/or the wdlour pension plan assets, which could requsreounake increased contribution:
the pension plan in 2013 and beyo

« The effects of customer bankruptcies and home limsaces, which could result in difficulty in colléan of revenues and loss of custom:

« Adverse changes in the credit markets or in thiegstgiven to our debt securities by nationallyradied ratings organizations, which cc
limit or restrict the availability, or increase tbest, of financing

« Our ability to pay dividends on our common shavdsich may be affected by our cash flow from opersti amount of capital expenditul
debt service requirements, cash paid for incomestaxd liquidity; an

« The effects of severe weather events such as hoas; tornadoes, ice storms or other natural o-made disaster:

Any of the foregoing events, or other events, caadse financial information to vary from managetiseforwardlooking statements includ
in this report. You should consider these impdrfactors, in evaluating any statement in this repo Form 10Q or otherwise made by us or
our behalf. The following information is unauditedd should be read in conjunction with the consiéid financial statements and related r
included in this report. We have no obligatiorupmlate or revise these forward-looking statememtsd® not undertake to do so.

Investors should also be aware that while we deadbus times, communicate with securities analyisis against our policy to disclose to t
selectively any material ngpublic information or other confidential informatioAccordingly, investors should not assume thatageee witl
any statement or report issued by an analyst ie@sg of the content of the statement or repanttfle extent that reports issued by secu
analysts contain any projections, forecasts oriops) such reports are not our responsibility.

Overview
See Note 3 of the Notes to Consolidated Finant&kSents included in Part |, Item 1 of this reforta discussion of the Transaction.

The Company is the nation’s largest communicats®rsices provider focused on rural areas and smdllmediunsized towns and cities. T
Company operates in 27 states, and is the natifimirth largest Incumbent Local Exchange CardeEC), with approximately 3.2 millia
customers, 4.9 million access lines, 1.8 millioadutband connections and 15,250 employees as ciSiept 30, 2012.

Cost Savings Resulting from the Transaction
We have achieved cost savings as a result of thesaction, principally (1) by leveraging the sciigbof our existing corporate administrat
functions, information technology and network sgsdeto cover certain former Acquired Business fumdiand systems, (2) by sourcing
certain functions formerly provided by thipghrty service providers to the Acquired Businesd €3) by achieving improved efficiencies i
more favorable rates with third-party vendors.

22




Our third quarter 2012 savings from our targetétiaitives list (which includes, but is not limited, cancellation or reduction of vendor servi
network cost savings, contractor reductions, bemfanges and real estate savings) was approximdted million and combined with t
savings achieved in the first half of 2012 of apiaately $22 million, the savings achieved in 2Giid 2010, equates to an annualized
savings run rate of approximately $648 million &the end of the third quarter of 2012.

Requlatory Developments

On November 18, 2011, the FCC released a ReporDader and Further Notice of Proposed Rulemakinghensubject of Universal Serv
Fund and intercarrier compensation reform (USF/REport & Order). The FCG&'USF/ICC Report & Order changed how federal suesiaill
be calculated and disbursed, with these changeg Ipbiased-in beginning in 2012. These changesititanthe federal Universal Service High-
Cost Fund, which supports voice services in higst-eoeas, to the Connect America Fund (CAF), whigbports broadband deployment in high-
cost areas. CAF Phase |, implemented in 2012, gesvfor ongoing USF support for price cap carrierbe capped at the 2011 amoun
addition, the FCC in CAF Phase | made availablefare cap ILECs an additional $300 million in ieorental high cost broadband support t
used for broadband deployment to unserved areasti€r was eligible to receive approximately $7mBlion of the total $300 million CA
Phase | interim support. On July 9, 2012, Frordienounced that it would accept all of the fundioghich it is eligible. On July 24, 20:
Frontier formally notified the FCC and appropriatate commissions of its intent to accept thosdg$wand identified the unserved locations t
served using the funds. The $71.9 million in inceatal CAF Phase | support is expected to enabiecaemental 92,877 households and wil
accounted for as Contributions in Aid of Constrosti Frontier is required to implement, spend amabée these 92,877 households no later
July 24, 2015. As of September 30, 2012, Froriées received $48.0 million of the CAF Phase | supfimds and has recorded increase
Cash and Other liabilities in the balance shedie FCC is currently considering the rules for disttion of incremental CAF funding in 2013.

The FCCs USF/ICC Report & Order also make changes to dateier Compensation. Intercarrier Compensationiclivhis the paymel
framework that governs how carriers compensate etiedr for the exchange of interstate traffic, widinsition over a number of years, with
first step being implemented in July 2012, to arreeaio rate for terminating traffic by 2017. Fremtill be able to recover a significant port
of those revenues through end user rates and refhleccement support mechanisms.

Effective December 29, 2011, the USF/ICC Report &léD required providers to pay interstate accetes ror the termination of VoIP t
traffic. On April 25, 2012, the FCC, in an Order Reconsideration, specified that changes to oriigaccess rates for VolP traffic will not
implemented until July 2014. The USF/ICC Report &€ has been challenged by certain parties int @mat certain parties have also petitic
the FCC to reconsider various aspects of the USF/Report & Order. With the initial implementatiomramencing in July 2012, the th
guarter’'s impact was immaterial.
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The following should be read in conjunction witlerit 7. “Managemerg’ Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiord dResults ¢
Operations” included in our Annual Report on For@aKl for the year ended December 31, 2011.

(a) Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of September 30, 2012, we had cash and cashadepis aggregating $1,099.5 million (excludingataestricted cash of $97.3 millic
representing funds escrowed for future broadbam@msion and service quality initiatives). Our i source of funds continued to be ¢
generated from operations. For the nine montheei&tptember 30, 2012, we used cash flow from tipasa cash on hand and debt proc
to fund all of our cash investing and financing\ates, primarily capital expenditures, dividenaisd debt repayments.

As discussed below, on August 15, 2012, the Companypleted a registered offering of $600 milliorgegate principal amount of 7.12
senior notes due 2023, issued at a price of 1008bedf principal amount. The Company will use tiet proceeds from the sale of the nots
repurchase or retire its existing indebtednessiogéneral corporate purposes.

In June 2012, the Company accepted for purchase $dllon aggregate principal amount of 2014 Natesl $49.5 million aggregate princi
amount of April 2015 Notes tendered for total cdesation of approximately $500 million. Frontiexedl proceeds from the sale of its previc
announced offering of $500 million of 9.250% Seniwtes due 2021, plus cash on hand, to purchasidtes. As a result of the succes
tender offer, the amount of 2014 Notes and April2Motes outstanding as of September 30, 2012 $206.0 million and $450.5 millio
respectively.

We have a revolving credit facility with a line ofedit of $750.0 million that we believe providadfieient flexibility to meet our liquidit
needs. As of September 30, 2012, we had not nadbarowings utilizing this facility.

At September 30, 2012, we had a working capitgblasrof $608.2 million, which includes the classifiion of certain debt maturing in the f
quarter of 2013 of $502.7 million as a currentiligh We believe our operating cash flows, exigticash balances, and existing revolving c
facility will be adequate to finance our workingp@al requirements, fund capital expenditures, maduired debt payments, pay taxes,
dividends to our stockholders, pay our integratiosts and capital expenditures, and support out-on and longerm operating strateg
through 2012. However, a number of factors, ineigddut not limited to, losses of voice customerwgipg pressure from increased competit
lower subsidy and switched access revenues, arichffget of the current economic environment aresetgrl to reduce our cash generated
operations. In addition, although we believe, Hase information available to us, that the finahaiatitutions syndicated under our revolv
credit facility would be able to fulfill their comitments to us, this could change in the future.oASeptember 30, 2012, we had approximi
$50.5 million of debt maturing during the last tanmonths of 2012 and approximately $560.5 milliod $257.9 million of debt maturing
2013 and 2014, respectively.

On October 1, 2012, the Company completed a registegebt offering of $250 million aggregate priradipmount of 7.125% senior unsect
notes due 2023, issued at a price of 104.250%edf gmincipal amount, equating to an effective gief 6.551%. We received net proceec
approximately $255.9 million from the offering aftdeducting underwriting discounts and offering exges. The notes are an additi
issuance of, are fully fungible with and form ageseries voting together as one class with tt@g0 $6illion aggregate principal amount
7.125% senior notes due 2023 issued by the Compayugust 15, 2012. The Company will use thepmneteeds from the sale of the note
repurchase or retire its existing indebtednessogéneral corporate purposes.

On October 1, 2012, the Company accepted for paec@5.7 million and $59.3 million aggregate ppatiamount of the April 2015 Notes ¢
the 2017 Notes, respectively, in open market rdmages for total consideration of $154.7 milliorheTepurchases resulted in a loss on the
retirement of debt of approximately $19.3 milliankie recognized in the fourth quarter of 2012.oA®ctober 31, 2012, approximately $37
million aggregate principal amount of the April Z0Notes and $1,040.7 million aggregate principabam of the 2017 Notes remair
outstanding.

In addition, the FCC and certain state regulat@mmissions, in connection with granting their apaie of the Transaction, specified cer
capital expenditure and operating requirementgtferacquired Territories for specified periodsiofet postelosing. These requirements fo
primarily on certain capital investment commitmetatsexpand broadband availability to at least 85%me households throughout the acqu
Territories with minimum download speeds of 3 Mbgshe end of 2013 and 4 Mbps by the end of 2015.
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As of September 30, 2012, we had expanded our bapalavailability to the households throughoutGoenpany’s territories as follows:

% of Households il

Frontier Acquired Total
(In excess of Legacy Territories Company
1 Mbps 92% 84% 86%
3 Mbps 79% 80% 80%
4 Mbps 75% 78% 77%
6 Mbps 65% 68% 67%
12 Mbps 37% 53% 48%
20 Mbps 30% 35% 34%

To satisfy all or part of certain capital investtheammitments to three state regulatory commissiaesplaced an aggregate amount of $1
million in cash into escrow accounts and obtainddtir of credit for $190.0 million in 2010. Arwr $72.4 million of cash in an esci
account (with a cash balance of $47.6 million andassociated liability of $0.2 million as of Septsmn 30, 2012) was acquired in connec
with the Transaction to be used for service qualitiiatives in the state of West Virginia. As 8&ptember 30, 2012, $90.5 million had t
released from escrow. In October 2012, we receamedadditional $25.6 million that was released fram escrow account in the state
Washington, which concludes the escrow petitiorc@ss in that state. In November 2012, we receiweds from the release of another $.
million from escrow accounts in the state of WesgMia. In addition, as of September 30, 2012, ldtter of credit had been reduced to $
million. The aggregate amount of these escrowwatscand the letter of credit will continue to de=age over time as Frontier makes the req
capital expenditures in the respective states.

Cash Flows provided by Operating Activities

Cash flows provided by operating activities dedi$d12.4 million, or 9%, for the nine months en&btember 30, 2012, as compared witl
prior year period. The decrease was primarily rdgult of large cash settlements of accounts paydbé to the timing of vendor payme
during the first quarter of 2012. In addition, cagcounts payable balances at December 31, 20T#, umeisually high due to our syste
conversion and broadband build activities in theosd half of 2011.

We paid $4.1 million in net cash taxes during thst fnine months of 2012. We expect that in 20012 @ash taxes for the full year will
approximately $15 million.

In connection with the Transaction, the Companytiooes to undertake a variety of activities to gntge systems and implement o
initiatives. As a result of the Transaction, then@pany incurred $68.2 million of costs relatedriegration activities during the first nine mor
of 2012, as compared to $100.9 million of integnatcosts during the first nine months of 2011. Twnpany estimates operating expe
related to its final integration activities in 20tt®be approximately $80 million.

Cash Flows used by Investing Activities

Capital Expenditures

For the nine months ended September 30, 2012 ahtl BOr capital expenditures were $609.9 milliorcifiding $38.8 million of integratien
related capital expenditures) and $699.2 milliowl(iding $62.6 million of integratiorelated capital expenditures), respectively. Wtiooe tc
closely scrutinize all of our capital projects, drapize return on investment and focus our capfiaeditures on areas and services that ha
greatest opportunities with respect to revenue tiraand cost reduction. We anticipate capital eggares for business operations to
approximately $750 million to $775 million for 2012Ve anticipate capital expenditures for our filrgkegration activities in 2012 to
approximately $50 million. Our capital expenditspending is projected to decrease in 2013 to appately $625 million to $675 million wit
the completion of all state and federal geographi@dband expansion requirements put in placehéoapproval of the Transaction.
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Cash Flows used by Financing Activities

Debt Issuance and Reduction

During the first nine months of 2012 and 2011, atireéd an aggregate principal amount of $571.5a@niland $79.0 million, respectively, of d
consisting of $570.7 million and $78.2 million, pestively, of senior unsecured debt and $0.8 milti6 rural utilities service loan contracts
each period.

On August 15, 2012, the Company completed a regiteffering of $600 million aggregate principal@mt of 7.125% senior notes due 2(
issued at a price of 100% of their principal amowMe received net proceeds of approximately $588llion from the offering after deducti
underwriting discounts and offering expenses. Tamg@any will use the net proceeds from the salb®htes to repurchase or retire its exis
indebtedness or for general corporate purposes.

On May 17, 2012, we completed a registered offeah§500.0 million aggregate principal amount d30% senior unsecured notes due 2
issued at a price of 100% of their principal amouli¥e received net proceeds of approximately $t8&8llion from the offering after deducti
underwriting discounts and offering expenses. Toenpany also commenced a tender offer to purchHasemaximum aggregate princi
amount of its 8.250% Senior Notes due 2014 (thel42Rotes”) and its 7.875% Senior Notes due 2016 ‘(&pril 2015 Notes"and, togethe
with the 2014 Notes, the “Notesthat it could purchase for up to $500 million irska The 2014 Notes had an effective interest@os0.855%
reflecting the fact that such notes were issueddiscount in April 2009.

On June 1, 2012, the Company accepted for purcbdB@ million aggregate principal amount of 2014 @éotendered for total consideratiol
$446 million. On June 18, 2012, the Company accefaie purchase $49.5 million aggregate principabamnt of April 2015 Notes tendered
total consideration of $54 million. We used prateéom the sale of our previously announced aoffgrof $500.0 million of 9.250% Sen
Notes due 2021, plus cash on hand, to purchasidtes. The repurchases in the debt tender offethioaiNotes resulted in a loss on the ¢
extinguishment of debt of $69.2 million, which wecognized in the second quarter of 20¥2e also recognized losses of $0.5 million and
million during the third quarter and first nine ntlos of 2012, respectively, for $78.1 million inabbpen market repurchases of our 6.25% S
Notes due 201

We may from time to time repurchase our debt ingpen market, through tender offers, exchangegbf skcurities, by exercising rights to
or in privately negotiated transactions. We may akfinance existing debt or exchange existing fitglmewly issued debt obligations.

Bank Financing
The Company has a credit agreement (the Creditehgeat) with CoBank, ACB, as administrative ageeadl arranger and a lender, anc

other lenders party thereto for a $575.0 millioniseunsecured term loan facility with a final matlyl of October 14, 2016. The entire faci
was drawn upon execution of the Credit AgreemenDatober 2011. Repayment of the outstanding graicbalance is made in quarte
installments in the amount of $14,375,000, whicliceenced on March 31, 2012, with the remaining aeatihg principal balance to be ref
on the final maturity date. Borrowings under tiredit Agreement bear interest based on the maayiesthe Base Rate (as defined in the C
Agreement) or LIBOR, at the election of the Compaihyterest rate margins under the facility (raiggirom 0.875% to 2.875% for Base F
borrowings and 1.875% to 3.875% for LIBOR borrovejgre subject to adjustments based on the Totarage Ratio of the Company, as <
term is defined in the Credit Agreement. The aurpgicing on this facility is LIBOR plus 2.875%.he maximum permitted leverage ratio is
times.

Credit Facility
We have a $750.0 million revolving credit faciliths of September 30, 2012, we had not made anypWworgs utilizing this facility. The tern

of the credit facility are set forth in the credgreement (the Revolving Credit Agreement), dasedfdarch 23, 2010, among the Company
Lenders party thereto, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, sAAdministrative Agent. Associated facility $aender the credit facility will vary fro
time to time depending on the Companyredit rating (as defined in the Revolving Crellifreement) and were 0.625% per annum
September 30, 2012. The credit facility is schedluteterminate on January 1, 2014. During the tefrthe credit facility, the Company m
borrow, repay and reborrow funds, and may obtatere of credit, subject to customary borrowingditions. Loans under the credit facility v
bear interest based on the alternate base ratheoadjusted LIBOR rate (each as determined in teeoRing Credit Agreement), at t
Company'’s election, plus a margin specified in Revolving Credit Agreement based on the Compaieyedit rating. Letters of credit isst
under the credit facility will also be subject &e§ that vary depending on the Comparykdit rating. The credit facility is availabler fgenere
corporate purposes but may not be used to fundeti payments.
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Letter of Credit Facility

We also have a $40.0 million unsecured letter eflitrfacility, as amended. The terms of the letiecredit facility are set forth in a Cre
Agreement, dated as of September 8, 2010, amon@ahgpany, the Lenders party thereto, and Deutsark B\G, New York Branch (tl
Bank), as Administrative Agent and Issuing Banle (tetter of Credit Agreement). An initial letter afedit for $190.0 million was issued to
West Virginia Public Service Commission to guarantertain of our capital investment commitment$Mast Virginia in connection with tl
Transaction. The initial commitments under thetéredf Credit Agreement expired on September 2Q12®&ith the Bank exercising its optior
extend $100.0 million of the commitments to Septem20, 2012. On September 11, 2012, the Compateresl into an amendment to
Letter of Credit Agreement to extend $40 milliontieé commitments to September 20, 2013. Two Eettécredit, one for $20 million expiril
March 2013 and the other for $20 million expiringpBmber 2013, were issued on September 13, 20M2.Company is required to pay
annual facility fee on the available commitmengamlless of usage. The covenants binding on thep@oynunder the terms of the amer
Letter of Credit Agreement are substantially simitathose in the Comparg/other credit facilities, including limitations diens, substanti
asset sales and mergers, subject to customaryteaepnd thresholds.

Covenants

The terms and conditions contained in our indestuie Credit Agreement, the Revolving Credit Agneat and the Letter of Credit Agreen
include the timely payment of principal and inténefen due, the maintenance of our corporate existekeeping proper books and recorc
accordance with U.S. GAAP, restrictions on the inence of liens on our assets, and restrictionasset sales and transfers, mergers and
changes in corporate control. We are not subjeptstrictions on the payment of dividends eitheicbptract, rule or regulation, other than
imposed by the General Corporation Law of the Stateelaware. However, we would be restricted urterCredit Agreement, the Revolv
Credit Agreement and the Letter of Credit Agreenfesrh declaring dividends if an event of defaultoed and was continuing at the tim
would result from the dividend declaration.

The Credit Agreement and the Revolving Credit Agreet each contain a maximum leverage ratio covetamder those covenants, we
required to maintain a ratio of (i) total indebteda minus cash and cash equivalents (includingatest cash) in excess of $50.0 million to
consolidated adjusted EBITDA (as defined in thesagrents) over the last four quarters no greater 4i60 to 1. At September 30, 2012,
ratio of our net debt to adjusted operating cas fleverage ratio) was 3.16 times.

The Credit Agreement, the Revolving Credit Agreetnéme Letter of Credit Agreement and certain irtdegs for our senior unsecured ¢
obligations limit our ability to create liens or rge or consolidate with other companies and ousiglidries’ability to borrow funds, subject
important exceptions and qualifications.

As of September 30, 2012, we were in complianch walitof our debt and credit facility covenants.

Dividends

We intend to pay regular quarterly dividends. @hility to fund a regular quarterly dividend wilebmpacted by our ability to generate ¢
from operations. The declarations and paymenttoféudividends will be at the discretion of our Bbaf Directors, and will depend upon mi
factors, including our financial condition, resuttSoperations, growth prospects, funding requineisieapplicable law, restrictions in agreem
governing our indebtedness and other factors oardof Directors deem relevant.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not maintain any offalance sheet arrangements, transactions, oblgatioother relationships with unconsolidated Eithat would k
expected to have a material current or future efipon our financial statements.

Future Commitments

In our normal course of business we have obligatiomder certain nooancelable arrangements for services. Duringhind guarter of 201
we entered into a take or pay arrangement for tirehase of future long distance and carrier sesvic®ur total commitments under
arrangement are $74.8 million, $132.0 million, $B4thillion and $140.8 million for the years endedcd@mber 31, 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2
respectively. As of September 30, 2012, we expeecttilize the services included within the arramgat and no liability for the take or
provision has been recorded.
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The Company has entered into an agreement to upgraiynificant portion of its existing vehicledte As of September 30, 2012, the Comj
has accepted delivery of 679 new vehicles and egpe@ccept delivery of approximately 3,000 addisil new vehicles by March 31, 2013.
new vehicles expected to be leased under this amogvill represent approximately 50% of our vehitéet. The minimum lease commitm
for each vehicle is 1 year and the leases are mrlevat the Company’option. The total annual lease expense forfathe new vehicles
expected to be approximately $30.0 million on anuatized basis upon the acceptance of the remaihigles.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We review all significant estimates affecting ownsolidated financial statements on a recurringsbaisd record the effect of any neces
adjustment prior to their publication. Uncertadstiwith respect to such estimates and assumptienmizerent in the preparation of finan
statements; accordingly, it is possible that acteallts could differ from those estimates and gkanto estimates could occur in the

term. The preparation of our financial statemeémtsonformity with U.S. GAAP requires managementrtake estimates and assumptions
affect the reported amounts of assets and liasliit the date of the financial statements, theadisre of contingent assets and liabilities, de
reported amounts of revenue and expenses duringepiteting period. Estimates and judgments arel wggen accounting for allowance
doubtful accounts, impairment of lofiged assets, impairment of intangible assets, ef@gtion and amortization, pension and c
postretirement benefits, income taxes, contingereie purchase price allocations, among others.

The Company monitors relevant circumstances, imctudieneral economic conditions, enterprise valB#TBA multiples for rural ILEC
properties, the Company’s overall financial perfante and the market prices for the Compamgmmon stock, and the potential impact
changes in such circumstances might have on theatiah of the Compang’ goodwill or other intangible assets. If our geddor othel
intangible assets are determined to be impairatiérfuture, we may be required to record a oash charge to earnings during the peric
which the impairment is determined.

Management has discussed the development andiseledtthese critical accounting estimates with fhedit Committee of our Board
Directors and our Audit Committee has revieweddisclosures relating to such estimates.

There have been no material changes to our criicabunting policies and estimates from the infdiomaprovided in Item 7. “Managemest’
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition d@ekults of Operations” included in our Annual Repmy Form 10K for the year ende
December 31, 2011.

New Accounting Pronouncements
There were no new accounting standards issueddomteal by the Company during the first nine momth2012, or that have been issued
are not required to be adopted until future periedth any material financial statement impact.

Fair Value Measurements

In May 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standardddtie No. 2011-04 (ASU 2011-04)dir Value Measurements: Amendments to Ack
Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Remugnts in U.S. GAAP and IFRSs” (ASC Topic 820). UA301104 changes ti
wording used to describe many of the requirememts.5. GAAP for measuring fair value and for disohg information about fair val
measurements to ensure consistency between U.SPGAA IFRS. ASU 201@4 also expands the disclosures for fair value oreasents thi
are estimated using significant unobservable (L&8yehputs. This new guidance was to be appliedgeotively, and was effective for inte|
and annual periods beginning after December 151.20he Company adopted ASU 2004-in the first quarter of 2012 with no impact aur
financial position, results of operations or casiwg.
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Presentation of Comprehensive Income

In June 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standdsddate No. 2011-05 (ASU 2011-05)C6mprehensive Income: Presentatior
Comprehensive Income,” (ASC Topic 220). ASU 2@ELeliminates the option to report other compreilveniscome and its components in
statement of changes in equity. ASU 2011-05 requihat all non-owner changes in stockholderguity be presented in either a sir
continuous statement of comprehensive income otwin separate but consecutive statements. This newamgce was to be appli
retrospectively, and was effective for interim amhual periods beginning after December 15, 20 December 2011, the FASB issued £
No. 201-12 that defers the effective date for amendmentgsh® presentation of reclassifications of items ofitaccumulated oth
comprehensive income in ASU 2011-05. The Compaigpted ASU 201D5 in the first quarter of 2012 with no impact oar dinancia
position, results of operations or cash flows.

[ndefinite-Lived Intangible Assets

In July 2012, the FASB issued Accounting Standddgelate No. 2012-02 (ASU 2012-02), “Intangibles—Geildand Other —Testing
Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairmen{ASC Topic 350). ASU 20122 permits an entity to first assess qualitativetdies tc
determine whether it is more likely than not thatiedefinitelived intangible asset is impaired as a basis &emnining whether it is necess
to perform a quantitative impairment test. The enrlitely-thannot threshold is defined as having a likelihoodradre than 50 percent. T
amendment also gives an entity the option not kutate annually the fair value of an indefiniteed intangible asset if the entity can deterr
that it is not more likely than not that the asseimpaired. If an entity concludes that it is moore likely than not that the indefinitieed
intangible asset is impaired, then the entity i$ mmuired to take further action. While ASU 2002-is effective for annual and intel
impairment tests performed for fiscal years begigrafter September 15, 2012, early adoption is jiEmin The Company is currently evalua
the impact of ASU 2012-02 on its future impairmtasts and early adoption is under consideratioe. dé/not expect the adoption of ASU 2012-
02 to have any impact on our financial positiosults of operations or cash flows.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)
FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S

(b) Results of Operations

REVENUE

Revenue is generated primarily through the prowisiblocal, network access, long distance, datéewiand internet services. Such revenue
generated through either a monthly recurring fea fae based on usage and revenue recognitiort ependent upon significant judgment:
management, with the exception of a determinatfanprovision for uncollectible amounts.

Revenue for the three months ended September 3@, @&reased $38.5 million, or 3%, to $1,252.5iomllhs compared with the three mol
ended September 30, 2011. Revenue for the ninghm@mded September 30, 2012 decreased $180.6rmitli 5%, to $3,779.3 million
compared with the nine months ended September(3(d,. 2The declines during both the third quarter fnst nine months of 2012 are prima
the result of decreases in the number of resideané business customers, and switched accessueveach as described in more detail below.

Switched access and subsidy revenue of $435.2milépresented 12% of our revenues for the ninglmanded September 30, 2012. Switi
access revenue was $204.1 million for the nine hworhded September 30, 2012, or 6% of our revedo@s) from $246.2 million, or 6%
our revenues, for the nine months ended Septenthe2@ 1. Subsidy revenue was $231.1 million Far mine months ended Septembel
2012, or 6% of our revenues, up slightly from $82%illion, or 6% of our revenues, for the nine nfenended September 30, 2011. We e
declining revenue trends in switched access ansidyibevenue during the remainder of 2012.

Change in the number of our access lines is oneartbat is used to understand our revenue andtabpdity. We lose access lines prima
because of competition (due to changing technokgy consumer behavior such as wireless substijuaonomic conditions, and by the |
of second lines upon the addition of broadbandisernDuring the third quarter of 2012, Frontieghe selling Simply Broadband, which i
broadband service without any wireline voice calitids. We are attracting and retaining custonweith this product and it has had a posi
impact on our third quarter residential customarts. As a result, when selling this service tquire or retain customers, no access line
sold nor are they counted. Similarly, during tbarth quarter of 2012, Frontier began selling &It broadband product and trial selling
AT&T Mobility product with a broadband service ialected markets. In both of these cases, a wérsgiiice capability may not be included
accordingly, in that situation, an access line wniit be counted. In addition, in our normal cowbbusiness, we proactively remove access
when we upgrade business customers and when wertaur dialup customers to broadband. As a result of alhefabove, changes in acc
lines may not be an indication of a loss of revemueustomers.

During the third quarter and second quarter of 201 lost approximately 129,600 and 92,700 acdess,|respectively. During these si
periods, we lost approximately 51,800 and 65,70&tarners, respectively. The improved customer rigterin the third quarter of 2012
compared to the second quarter of 2012 is pringiphle to the successful penetration of the Sinfjrlyadband product discussed above. /
during the third quarter of 2012, the average mlgntiustomer revenue per customer increased $2109,986, over the second quartel
2012. During the nine months ended September @02,2we lost approximately 324,400 access lines, are8.0% on an annual basis
compared to approximately 371,800 access linesgdumeng the nine months ended September 30, 2018,586 on an annual basis. We
171,600 residential customers and 18,500 businestsroers during the nine months ended Septembe&(3@, or 7.7% on an annual basis
compared to 270,300 residential customers and @4d8iness customers lost during the nine montidede8eptember 30, 2011, or 10.2% o
annual basisAverage monthly residential revenue per customeresed $0.53 to $58.72 during the third quarte20df2 as compared to
second quarter of 2012. This increase is primahniégyresult of the additional monthly subscribeelcharges to our residential customers w
were implemented in the third quarter of 2012 asnjtéed by the USF/ICC Report & Orddtconomic conditions and/or increasing compet
could make it more difficult to sell our bundledhdee offerings, and cause us to increase our ptiom® and/or lower our prices for our prodi
and services, which would adversely affect our meree profitability and cash flows.

During the nine months ended September 30, 202 Cbmpany added approximately 18,100 broadbandcsbbss, net. The Comparsy’
broadband customer base grew by approximately 1do€i@g the third quarter of 2012, reflecting thgpact of lower customer activations ¢
result of fewer marketing promotions and final cersion cleandp. In connection with the Transaction, the Conypagreed to focus primar
on certain capital investment commitments to exganeéhdband availability and speeds. The Compaagspio significantly expand broadbi
availability and speed over the next several yetvs. expect to increase broadband subscribersgitirenremainder of 2012.
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As stated above, while the number of access Imesé metric to gauge certain revenue trendspivtimecessarily the best or only measul
evaluate our business. Management believes tetdroer counts and understanding different compaerafmevenue is most important. For t
reason, presented in the table titled “Other Fifsr@md Operating Data” below is an analysis thiespnts customer counts, average monthly
revenue, products per customer and churn. Itagegorizes revenue into customer revenue (residl@md business) and regulatory revenue
(switched access and subsidy revenue). Despité.®9€ decline in residential customers and the &i8&tine in business customers since
September 30, 2011, customer revenue (all revexaepeswitched access and subsidy revenue) dedfhintbé first nine months of 2012 by 4%
as compared to the prior year period. The dedlirreistomers was partially offset by increasedepration of additional products sold to both
residential and business customers, which hasdeettour average monthly revenue per customeubsgtantial further loss of customers,
combined with increased competition and the othetoks discussed herein, may cause our revenuéapiiity and cash flows to decrease.

OTHER FINANCIAL AND OPERATING DATA

As of As of % Increase
September 30, 201 September 30, 201 (Decrease
Customers 3,223,55 3,494,29. (8%)
Access lines
Residentia 3,025,92! 3,344,75! (10%)
Business 1,916,59 2,029,10: (6%)
Total access lines 4,942 52, 5,373,85! (8%)
Broadband subscribers 1,782,27: 1,754,84. 2%
Video subscribers®) 388,25’ 556,55: (30%)
For the three months ended For the nine months ended
September 3( September 3(
%
$ Increast % Increast $ Increast Increase
2012 2011 (Decrease (Decrease 2012 2011 (Decrease (Decrease
Revenue (in 000's)
Residentia $ 531,39 $ 560,91: $ (29,51¢) (5%) $ 1,601,322 $ 1,726,38: $ (125,06 (7%)
Business 581,09 581,99: (89¢€) 0% 1,742,76 1,761,40! (18,64%) (1%)
Customer revenue 1,112,49. 1,142,901 (30,417) (3%) 3,344,08: 3,487,79: (143,709 (4%)
Switched access and subsidy 139,97! 148,03: (8,05¢) (5%) 435,21 472,09¢ (36,887) (8%)
Total revenue $ 1,252,46° $ 1,290,93! $ (38,47() (3%) $ 3,779,300  $ 3,959,89 $  (180,59) (5%)

Switched access minutes of us
(in millions) 4,481 4,62¢ (3%) 13,76¢ 14,41: (4%)
Average monthly total revenue

per customer $ 128.4¢  $ 121.6¢ 6% $ 126.70  $ 121.0¢ 5%
Average monthly total customer
revenue per custome $ 1141  $ 107.7: 6% $ 11212 $ 106.6¢ 5%
Average monthly total revenue petr
access line $ 83.3t $ 79.2% 5% $ 82.1f $ 79.21 4%
Average monthly customer revenue
per access lint $ 74.0¢ $ 70.1¢ 6% $ 726¢ % 69.71 4%
As of or for the three months ended As of or for the nine months ended
September 3( September 3(
%
% Increase Increase
2012 2011 (Decrease 2012 2011 (Decrease
Residential customer metrics:
Customer: 2,932,16: 3,174,91! (8%) 2,932,16: 3,174,91! (8%)
Revenue (in 000" $ 531,39 $ 560,91: (5%) $ 1,601,32. $ 1,726,38: (7%)
Average monthly residenti
revenue per custom@r $ 58.7: $ 57.52 2% $ 5798 % 57.4¢ 1%
Customer monthly chui 1.62% 1.7% (5%) 1.58% 1.7% (8%)
Business customer metrics
Customer: 291,39 319,37¢ (9%) 291,39 319,37¢ (9%)
Revenue (in 000" $ 581,09 $ 581,99! 0% $ 1,742,76. $ 1,761,40! (1%)
Average monthly busine
revenue per custom $ 659.0. $ 600.4¢ 10% $ 6455. $ 591.5¢ 9%

(MDecline in video subscribers is due to the los30#,100 DirecTV subscribers in the third quarteR@12 as Frontier no longer provides DirecTV ag phits bundled package
@Calculation excludes the Mohave Cellular LimitedtRership.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)
FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S

REVENUE

For the three months end

($in thousands) September 3(
$ Increast % Increast
2012 2011 (Decrease (Decrease
Local and long distance servic $ 556,35: $ 605,59 $ (49,24() (8%)
Data and internet servic 461,21. 457,93« 3,27¢ 1%
Other 94,92¢ 79,37¢ 15,55( 20%
Customer revenu 1,112,49. 1,142,901 (30,419 (3%)
Switched access and subs 139,97! 148,03: (8,05¢) (5%)
Total revenue $ 1,252,46' $ 1,290,93' $ (38,47() (3%)
For the nine months end
September 3(
$ Increast % Increast
2012 2011 (Decrease (Decrease
Local and long distance servic $ 1,688,35 $ 1,858,45 $ (170,099 (9%)
Data and internet servic 1,366,58! 1,378,06! (11,477 (1%)
Other 289,14. 251,28: 37,86: 15%
Customer revenu 3,344,08. 3,487,79. (143,709 (4%)
Switched access and subs 435,21 472,09¢ (36,88) (8%)
Total revenus $ 3,779,300 $ 3,959,89. $ (180,59) (5%)

Local and Long Distance Services

Local and long distance services revenue for theetland nine months ended September 30, 2012 dedr&49.2 million, or 8%, to $55!
million, and $170.1 million, or 9%, to $1,688.4 liwih, respectively, as compared with the three aim& months ended September 30, :
primarily due to the continued loss of voice custmsnand, to a lesser extent, decreases in privegesérvices and feature packages, par
offset by an increase in local voice revenues asitiar increased charges to residential and busiard users to the extent permitted by
USF/ICC Report and Order.

Local and enhanced services revenue for the thm@aime months ended September 30, 2012 decre&68ed ®illion, or 6%, to $456.3 millio
and $122.3 million, or 8%, to $1,371.9 million, pestively, primarily due to the continued loss afice customers and, to a lesser ex
decreases in private line services and featureguask partially offset by an increase in local gaievenues as Frontier increased charg
residential and business end users to the extentitted by the USF/ICC Report and Order. Longtatice services revenue for the three
nine months ended September 30, 2012 decreasefl #ilion, or 16%, to $100.1 million, and $47.8 lah, or 13%, to $316.5 millio
respectively, primarily due to a decrease in thalper of long distance customers using our bunddedce offerings, lower minutes of use at
lower average revenue per minute of use.

Data and I nternet Services

Data and internet services revenue for the thrdenare months ended September 30, 2012 increas8d#ion, or 1%, to $461.2 million, ai
decreased $11.5 million, or 1%, to $1,366.6 millimspectively, as compared with the three and miaorths ended September 30, 2011.
services revenue decreased $0.4 million to $210lBm and $14.9 million to $620.6 million, resgiely, for the three and nine months en
September 30, 2012, as compared with the samedgenio2011, primarily due to higher promotionalodisnts and customer credits. At
September 30, 2012, the number of the Compabgoadband subscribers increased by approxim2ie00, or 2%, since September 30, 2(
Data and internet services also includes nonswdtchecess revenue from data transmission servicesthier carriers and higéslume
commercial customers with dedicated higpacity Internet and ethernet circuits. Nonswitthccess revenue increased $3.7 million to $
million, and $3.4 million to $746.0 million, resgaely, for the three and nine months ended Sepéend0, 2012, as compared with
comparable periods of 2011 due to changes in grighated to volume discount contracts and setthésnaf disputes with carriers.
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Other

Other revenue for the three and nine months endgte®ber 30, 2012 increased $15.6 million, or 2@494.9 million, and $37.9 million,
15%, to $289.1 million, respectively, as comparéith the three and nine months ended September03Q, 20ther revenue for the three mor
ended September 30, 2012 increased as comparée toomparable prior period, primarily due to higkervice activation fees and hig
wireless revenue, partially offset by lower diregteervices revenue. Other revenue for the ninethsoended September 30, 2012 increas
compared to the comparable prior period, primatig to higher service activation fees, lower bdat d&penses that are charged against re
and higher wireless revenue, partially offset g/ iduction in customers for FiOS video service lamer directory services revenue.

Switched Access and Subsidy

Switched access and subsidy revenue for the tim@é@iae months ended September 30, 2012 decre&skdn#llion, or 5%, to $140.0 millio
and $36.9 million, or 8%, to $435.2 million, restreely, as compared with the three and nine moettded September 30, 2011. Switc
access revenue for the three and nine months eddptember 30, 2012 of $62.2 million and $204.1iom|l respectively, decreased $1
million, or 16%, and $42.0 million, or 17%, respeely, as compared to the same periods of 201ingrily due to the impact of a decline
minutes of use related to access line losses amdligplacement of minutes of use by wireless, emad other communications servi
combined with a reduction due to the third quantgpact of the lower rates enacted by the first phafsthe FCCS intercarrier compensati
reform. Switched access and subsidy revenue iaslsdbsidy payments we receive from federal arid aggencies, including surcharges b
to customers that are remitted to the FCC. Subsidgnue, including surcharges billed to custon@r$29.0 million and $87.5 millio
respectively, for the three and nine months endgxle®nber 30, 2012 of $77.8 million and $231.1 onillirespectively, increased $4.2 million
6%, and $5.1 million, or 2%, respectively, as coragawith the same periods of 2011, primarily duenreased support for the Fed
Universal Service Fund and local switching, inchglihe third quarter implementation of the USF/IR€port and Order.

Federal and state subsidies and surcharges (wtédbilked to customers and remitted to the FCCltlier Company were $115.7 million, $2
million and $87.5 million, respectively, and $23illion in total, or 6% of our revenues, for thim& months ended September 30, 2012.
federal and state subsidies and surcharges webe%@a#llion, or 6% of our revenues, for the ninentis ended September 30, 2011.

On November 18, 2011, the FCC released a ReporOader and Further Notice of Proposed Rulemakinghensubject of Universal Serv
Fund and intercarrier compensation reform (USF/REport & Order). The FCG&'USF/ICC Report & Order changed how federal suesiaill
be calculated and disbursed, with these changeg Ipbiased-in beginning in 2012. These changesititanthe federal Universal Service High-
Cost Fund, which supports voice services in higbt-eoeas, to the Connect America Fund (CAF), whigbports broadband deployment in high-
cost areas. CAF Phase |, implemented in 2012, gesvfor ongoing USF support for price cap carrierbe capped at the 2011 amoun
addition, the FCC in CAF Phase | made availablefare cap ILECs an additional $300 million in ieorental high cost broadband support t
used for broadband deployment to unserved areasti€r was eligible to receive approximately $7mBlion of the total $300 million CA
Phase | interim support. On July 9, 2012, Frordienounced that it would accept all of the fundioghich it is eligible. On July 24, 20:
Frontier formally notified the FCC and appropriatate commissions of its intent to accept thosddwand identified the unserved locations t
served using the funds. The $71.9 million in inceatal CAF Phase | support is expected to enabiecaemental 92,877 households and wil
accounted for as Contributions in Aid of Constroieti Frontier is required to implement, spend amabée these 92,877 households no later
July 24, 2015. As of September 30, 2012, Frortées received $48.0 million of the CAF Phase | supfumds and has recorded increase
Cash and Other liabilities in the balance shedie FCC is currently considering the rules for disttion of incremental CAF funding in 2013.

The FCCs USF/ICC Report & Order also make changes to dateler Compensation. Intercarrier Compensatiohiclv is the payme
framework that governs how carriers compensate et@dT for the exchange of interstate traffic, widinsition over a number of years, with
first step being implemented in July 2012, to arreeaio rate for terminating traffic by 2017. Fremtill be able to recover a significant port
of those revenues through end user rates and refhleccement support mechanisms.

Effective December 29, 2011, the USF/ICC Report &léD required providers to pay interstate accetes ror the termination of VoIP t
traffic. On April 25, 2012, the FCC, in an Order Reconsideration, specified that changes to oriigigaaccess rates for VolIP traffic will not
implemented until July 2014. The USF/ICC Report &€ has been challenged by certain parties int @mat certain parties have also petitic
the FCC to reconsider various aspects of the USF/Report & Order. With the initial implementatiomramencing in July 2012, the th
quarter’'s impact was immaterial.
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Certain states also have their own open proceedingsldress reform to intrastate access chargestaed intercarrier compensation and ¢
Universal Service funds. In addition, we have bapproached by, and/or are involved in formal spateeedings with, various carriers see
reductions in intrastate access rates in certatestAlthough the FCC has pmpted state jurisdiction on certain access chargasy states a
still considering moving forward with their procéegls. We cannot predict when or how these mattédrdevdecided or the effect on our sub:
or switched access revenues. However, future rishscin our subsidy or switched access revenuesdinagtly affect our profitability and ca
flows as those regulatory revenues do not haveyaal éevel of associated variable expenses.

OPERATING EXPENSES
NETWORK ACCESS EXPENSES

For the three months end

($in thousands) September 3(
$ Increast % Increast
2012 2011 (Decrease (Decrease
Network acces $ 102,05 $ 119,94: $ (17,890 (15%)
For the nine months end
September 3(
$ Increast % Increast
2012 2011 (Decrease (Decrease
Network acces $ 333,050 % 397,85 $ (64,80)) (16%)

Network access expenses for the three and ninehmentded September 30, 2012 decreased $17.9 mdlid%%, to $102.1 million, and $6¢
million, or 16%, to $333.1 million, respectivelys aompared with the three and nine months endegi®bpr 30, 2011, primarily due to reduced
data network and backbone costs, reflecting costrgyes realized in moving traffic onto the Frontegacy backbone, and decreased long
distance carriage costs in 2012, including a rédadn costs for our originating traffic associateith the third quarter implementation of the
USF/ICC Report and Order. Network access expeasisesncluded promotional gift costs of $2.3 mitliand $12.8 million, respectively, in the
third quarter and nine months ended September@Q, for various broadband and video subscriber ptimms.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)
FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

For the three months end

($in thousands) September 3(
$ Increast % Increast
2012 2011 (Decrease (Decrease
Wage and benefit expens $ 315,46¢f $ 289,01 $ 26,45¢ 9%
All other operating expens: 256,88 282,37 (25,499 (9%)
$ 572,34t  $ 571,38( $ 96C 0%
For the nine months end
September 3(
$ Increast % Increast
2012 2011 (Decrease (Decrease
Wage and benefit expens $ 902,72t % 858,72 $ 43,99¢ 5%
All other operating expens: 761,11¢ 871,09 (109,98) (13%)
$ 1,663,84. $ 1,729,82 $ (65,987) (4%)

Wage and benefit expenses

Wage and benefit expenses for the three and nimthsmi@nded September 30, 2012 increased $26.5mitr 9%, to $315.5 million, and $4
million, or 5%, to $902.7 million, respectivelyn@luding $14.8 million and $14.6 million of sevecancosts for the nine month periods in 2
and 2011, respectively, related to 562 and 290 eyegls), as compared to the three and nine montiexle®eptember 30, 2011, primarily du
higher costs for compensation and certain otheefitsresulting from higher average employee headtand incremental overtime costs in
third quarter of 2012 to repair the network forsmally higher storm damage costs than in the peoiod. Incremental overtime and other ¢
incurred in the third quarter of 2012, resultingnfr seasonal storms, were $15 million greater th@nsecond quarter of 2012. We ex
headcount to decline on a go forward basis sineesystems conversions are finished and the additemployees hired to help us are no lo
needed.

Pension costs for the Company are included in agenand benefit expenses. Pension costs for the thonths ended September 30, 201:
2011 were approximately $11.6 million and $7.9 imil| respectively. Pension costs include pensigerse of $14.1 million and $9.6 millic
less amounts capitalized into the cost of capkpkaditures of $2.5 million and $1.7 million foretthree months ended September 30, 201
2011, respectively.

Pension costs for the nine months ended Septerfb@032 and 2011 were approximately $33.6 milliod $23.3 million, respectively. Pens
costs include pension expense of $41.7 million$2®18 million, less amounts capitalized into thetaf capital expenditures of $8.1 million i
$5.5 million for the nine months ended Septembe28@2 and 2011, respectively.

Based on current assumptions and plan asset valeesstimate that our 2012 pension and other gstreent benefit expenses (which w
$58.3 million in 2011 before amounts capitalizetbithe cost of capital expenditures) will be apjmately $80 million to $85 million fc
Frontier before amounts capitalized into the cdstapital expenditures. We made total net contiiims to our pension plan for 2012 of $:-
million, which reflects the positive impact of fung rate changes contained in the Highway InvestrAehof 2012 and guidance from the |
on August 16, 2012 related to valuation rates, am@&eptember 11, 2012 related to lump sum methgso Net contributions totaling $1.
million were made during the third quarter of 2@t®l $10.3 million was made in October 2012. Theeena further contributions to be mad
2012.
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All other operating expenses

All other operating expenses for the three and nimaths ended September 30, 2012 decreased $25idnmir 9%, to $256.9 million, ar
$110.0 million, or 13%, to $761.1 million, respeety, as compared with the three and nine monthee@iSeptember 30, 2011, primarily du
lower computer costs, outside service fees, fagliand office services.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

For the three months end

($in thousands) September 3(
$ Increase % Increast
2012 2011 (Decrease (Decrease
Depreciation expens $ 209,94 % 226,70: $ (16,75¢ (7%)
Amortization expens 88,46 125,2 (36,73¢ (29%)
$ 298,41 % 351,900 $ (53,491 (15%)
For the nine months end
September 3(
$ Increast¢ % Increast
2012 2011 (Decrease (Decrease
Depreciation expens $ 628,82 % 671,17. $ (42,34¢ (6%)
Amortization expens 333,94 390,9 (57,03¢ (15%)
$ 962,76 % 1,062,151 $ (99,387 (9%)

Depreciation and amortization expense for the tlame@ nine months ended September 30, 2012 decr&a&8esl million, or 15%, to $29¢
million, and $99.4 million, or 9%, to $962.8 millip respectively, as compared to the three and nioaths ended September
2011. Amortization expense decreased primarilytduewer amortization expense associated withatteelerated writeff of certain softwar
licenses no longer required for operations durimg first quarter of 2012 as a result of the conagletystem conversions, the amortize
associated with certain Frontier legacy propettied were fully amortized in March 2012 and the dimation related to the customer base
discussed below). Depreciation expense decrgaré@ayrily due to a lower net asset base and chaimgttee remaining useful lives of cert
assets.

We annually commission an independent study to tepitie estimated remaining useful lives of our ptasets. The latest study was comp
in the fourth quarter of 2011 and after review andlysis of the results, we adopted new lives éotain plant assets as of October 1, 2011.
“composite depreciation ratdbr plant assets was 6.4% as a result of the stWdy.anticipate depreciation expense of approxiyai84(
million to $850 million for 2012.

Amortization expense for the nine months ended édepér 30, 2012 and 2011 included $322.7 million $8d8.8 million, respectively, f
intangible assets (primarily customer base) thaevaequired in the Transaction based on an estihfatevalue of $2.5 billion and an estime
useful life of nine years for the residential cuséw list and 12 years for the business customgrdisortized on an accelerated method.
anticipate amortization expense of approximate®0®dillion for 2012.
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INTEGRATION COSTS

For the three montt
ended September 3

($in thousands) $ Increast % Increase
2012 2011 (Decrease (Decrease
Integration cost $ 445 $ 67,41. $ (62,954 (93%)

For the nine month
ended September 3

$ Increast % Increast
2012 2011 (Decrease (Decrease
Integration cost $ 68,20 $ 100,89¢ $ (32,69¢ (32%)

Integration costs include expenses incurred tagmate the network and information technology platfe, and to enable other integration and
savings initiatives. In the first quarter of 201Be Company successfully converted the operatystess in the remaining nine states ol
Acquired Business to our legacy systems. Therefw®f March 31, 2012, the Company had complésedetwork and systems integration
one platform. While these conversions are comptateCompany continues to simplify its processéminate redundancies and further rec
its cost structure while improving its customervisr capabilities. The Company incurred $68.2 iorlland $100.9 million of operati
expenses and $38.8 million and $62.6 million iniedpexpenditures related to integration activitthging the first nine months of 2012 i
2011, respectively. The Company currently expeatintur operating expenses and capital expenditimeshe full year of 2012 related
completing its integration and cost savings initisg of approximately $80 million and $50 milliaespectively, including the amounts incul
during the first nine months of 2012. Our integmatcosts and related capital expenditures wiltopleted by the end of 2012.

INVESTMENT INCOME / OTHER INCOME (LOSS), NET / INTE REST EXPENSE / INCOME TAX EXPENSE

For the three months end

September 3(
($in thousands) $ Increas¢ % Increast
2012 2011 (Decrease (Decrease
Investment income (los: $ 32 % (66€) $ 98¢ 148%
Losses on early extinguishment of d $ (245 $ -8 (24%) (100%)
Other income (loss), n $ 427¢ % 150 $ 2,771 185%
Interest expens $ 172,18¢ $ 165,758 $ 6,43: 4%
Income tax expense (bene $ 3573¢ $ (6,94 $ 42,681 NM
For the nine months end
September 3(
$ Increast % Increast
2012 2011 (Decrease (Decrease
Investment incom $ 12,417 $ 2,62¢ 3 9,79: NM
Losses on early extinguishment of d $ (71,069) $ - % (71,069 (100%)
Other income (loss), ni $ 6,577 $ 741 3 (83¢) (11%)
Interest expens $ 509,10: $ 500,03: $ 9,07( 2%
Income tax expens $ 66,15( $ 66,80¢ $ (659) (1%)
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I nvestment I ncome

Investment income for the three and nine monthedrgeptember 30, 2012 increased $1.0 million t8 #dillion, and $9.8 million to $12
million, respectively, as compared with the thred aine months ended September 30, 2011, primauié/to $9.8 million in investment ga
associated with cash received during the secondagua 2012 in connection with our previously weit-off investment in Adelphia.

Our average cash balances were $550.4 million @6@.8 million for the nine months ended Septemlifer2B12 and 2011, respectively. |
average total restricted cash balance was $121lidmand $177.0 million for the nine months endptember 30, 2012 and 2011, respecti

Losses on Early Extinguishment of Debt

During the second quarter of 2012, we recognizkssiof $69.2 million on the early extinguishmehtlebt in connection with a $500.0 milli
debt tender offer for the Notes. We also recoghlaeses of $0.5 million and $2.1 million duringetthird quarter and first nine months of 2(
respectively, for $78.1 million in total open markepurchases of our 6.25% Senior Notes due 2013.

Other Income (Loss), Net

Other income (loss), net for the three and nine troended September 30, 2012 increased $2.8 mitidgv.3 million, and decreased $
million to $6.6 million, respectively, as companih the three and nine months ended Septembe2(®(,, primarily due to an increase of §
million in the settlement of customer advancesamspared with the third quarter of the prior year.

I nterest expense

Interest expense for the three and nine monthsdeBdptember 30, 2012 increased $6.4 million, or @¥2$172.2 million, and $9.1 million,
2%, to $509.1 million, respectively, as comparethwhe three and nine months ended September 3d, Z0imarily due to the registel
offering of $600 million of senior unsecured notesAugust 15, 2012, resulting in higher average tiakels, and lower capitalized interes
2012. Our average debt outstanding was $8,468l&miand $8,274.3 million for the nine months edd8eptember 30, 2012 and 2(
respectively. Our composite average borrowing aatef September 30, 2012 and 2011 was 7.87% afé3respectively.

Income tax expense (benefit)

Income tax expense for the three and nine monttieceBeptember 30, 2012 increased $42.7 millior3&o&million, and decreased $0.7 milli
or 1%, to $66.2 million, respectively, as compaveth the three and nine months ended SeptembeR@Dl. The third quarter variance
primarily due to higher pretax income in 2012 amel teduced impact of the reversal of uncertairptsitions for $6.2 million. A $10.5 millic
charge was recorded in the second quarter of 28duilting from the enactment on May 25, 2011 ofNfhehigan Corporate Income Tax wh
eliminated certain future tax deductions. Thedfie tax rate for the first nine months of 2012 011 was 34.8% and 37.3%, respectively.

The amount of our uncertain tax positions whoseutgeof limitations are expected to expire durihg hext twelve months and which wc
affect our effective tax rate is $6.3 million asS#ptember 30, 2012.

We paid $4.1 million in net cash taxes and recef#&682 million in cash tax refunds, net during e months ended September 30, 2012
2011, respectively. We expect that our cash tgxeats for the full year of 2012 will be approximigt$15 million. Our 2012 cash tax estin
reflects the continued impact of bonus depreciatioraccordance with the Tax Relief, Unemploymerguhance Reauthorization, and
Creation Act of 2010. Absent any legislative ctesiin 2012 or 2013, cash taxes are expected teaserin 2013 to approximately $125 mil
to $150 million.

Net income attributable to common shareholders of Frontier

Net income attributable to common shareholdersrohtter for the third quarter of 2012 was $67.0lianil, or $0.07 per share, as compare
$20.4 million, or $0.02 per share, in the third gemof 2011, and $111.8 million, or $0.11 per shas compared to $107.4 million or $0.11
share, for the nine months ended September 30, 2011
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Iltem 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosuresabout Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk in the normal coofseur business operations due to ongoing investind) funding activities, including thc
associated with our pension assets. Market riskrsetb the potential change in fair value of aritial instrument as a result of fluctuation
interest rates and equity prices. We do not holgsue derivative instruments, derivative commpdistruments or other financial instrume
for trading purposes. As a result, we do not uiadter any specific actions to cover our exposurméoket risks, and we are not party to
market risk management agreements other than indheal course of business. Our primary markdt eisposures are interest rate risk
equity price risk as follows:

Interest Rate Exposure

Our exposure to market risk for changes in interatsts relates primarily to the interésaring portion of our pension investment portfaia
related obligations, and floating rate indebtedné&3sr longterm debt as of September 30, 2012 was approxiyn@#to fixed rate debt wi
minimal exposure to interest rate changes. Wenloddterest rate swap agreements related to oewd fiate debt in effect at September 30, 2012.

Our objectives in managing our interest rate rigk ta limit the impact of interest rate changeseamings and cash flows and to lower
overall borrowing costs. To achieve these objestiall but $531.9 million of our outstanding beviogs at September 30, 2012 have f
interest rates. In addition, our undrawn $750.[ioni revolving credit facility has interest ratdsat float with LIBOR, as defined. Consequet
we have limited material future earnings or caslwfexposures from changes in interest rates onamgterm debt. An adverse change
interest rates would increase the amount that weopaour variable rate obligations and could resuftuctuations in the fair value of our fix
rate obligations. Based upon our overall interat exposure at September 30, 2012, a tegar-change in interest rates would not matel
affect our consolidated financial position, resolt®perations or cash flows.

Sensitivity analysis of interest rate exposure

At September 30, 2012, the fair value of our leeign debt was estimated to be approximately $8libmi based on our overall weigh
average borrowing rate of 7.87% and our overalbiveid average maturity of approximately 9 yeafs of September 30, 2012, there has
no material change in the weighted average matapplicable to our obligations since December 81,12

Equity Price Exposure

Our exposure to market risks for changes in eqgeturity prices as of September 30, 2012 is limitedur pension assets. We have no «
security investments of any material amount.

The Companyg pension plan assets have increased from $1,258i6n at December 31, 2011 to $1,282.2 millionSsptember 30, 2012,
increase of $24.2 million, or 2%. This increase iesult of positive investment returns, cash ridomtions and additional asset transfers 1
Verizon for a combined total of $147.5 million, $elsenefit payments of $123.3 million during thatfinine months of 2012. We made tota
contributions to our pension plan for 2012 of $28ion, which reflects the positive impact of fing rate changes contained in the High
Investment Act of 2012 and guidance from the IRR\agust 16, 2012 related to valuation rates, an@eptember 11, 2012 related to lump
methodologies. Net contributions totaling $18.2lioi were made during the third quarter of 20121 &10.3 million was made in Octol
2012. There are no further contributions to belena 2012.
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Item 4. Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedi

We carried out an evaluation, under the superviaiwh with the participation of our management,tdeig our principal executive officer &
principal financial officer, regarding the effeativess of our disclosure controls and procedureddfiised in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d.5{e
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as astndBased upon this evaluation, our principalcekige officer and principal financi
officer concluded, as of the end of the period cetleby this report, September 30, 2012, that osclaure controls and procedures \
effective.

(b) Changes in internal control over financial repat

We reviewed our internal control over financial ogng at September 30, 2012. As a result of tten3action, we have integrated the busi
processes and systems of the Acquired Businessaarad,March 31, 2012, the Company had complegedetwork and systems integration
one platform. Accordingly, certain changes havenbmade to our internal controls over financiabrépg.

There have been no other changes in our intermatalamver financial reporting identified in an éwation thereof that occurred during the tl
fiscal quarter of 2012 that materially affectedjsoreasonably likely to materially affect, ourémal control over financial reporting.
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ltem 1. Legal Proceedings

See Note 17 of the Notes to Consolidated Finar8tiements included in Part |, Item 1 of this répdhere have been no material chang
our legal proceedings from the information providedtem 3. “Legal Proceedings” included in ourrAal Report on Form 1B-for the yea
ended December 31, 2011.

We are party to various legal proceedings arismdhe normal course of our business covering a waghge of matters or types of cla
including, but not limited to, general contractdling disputes, rights of access, tax, consumertgmtion, trademark and patent infringem
employment, regulatory and tort. Litigation is gdb to uncertainty and the outcome of individuattars is not predictable. However,
believe that the ultimate resolution of all suchters, after considering insurance coverage orratiteemnities to which we are entitled, will
have a material adverse effect on our financiaitioos results of operations, or our cash flows.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

There have been no changes to the Risk Factorslidin Part 1 “Item 1A. Risk Factors” in the Cpamy’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 and outeglyeReport on Form 10-Q for the quarter endedda81, 2012, each as filed with the
SEC.

ltem 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securitseand Use of Proceeds

There were no unregistered sales of equity seesrtiring the quarter ended September 30, 2012.
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ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Total
Number of Average

S hares Price Paid
Period Purchase: per Share
July 1, 2012 to July 31, 20:
Employee Transactions ( 80,357 $ 3.6¢€
August 1, 2012 to August 31, 20
Employee Transactions ( 1,43i $ 4.1¢
September 1, 2012 to September 30, 2
Employee Transactions ( 1,34¢ $ 4.62
Totals July 1, 2012 to September 30, 2
Employee Transactions ( 83,13¢ $ 3.7C

(1) Includes restricted shares withheld (under the sesfrgrants under employee stock compensation Jptansffset minimum tax withholdir
obligations that occur upon the vesting of restdcshares. The Compasystock compensation plans provide that the vafughare
withheld shall be the average of the high and lowepof the Compar's common stock on the date the relevant transactionrs.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosure

Not applicable
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Exhibits

Exhibits:

311 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursudo Rule 13-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1!
31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursutato Rule 13-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1!

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.Cct8m 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 90te
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdiio8e906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101.INS XBRL Instance Documen

101.SCHXBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Documt
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Docum
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Docume
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Docume

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docunhe
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgph Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caussdeport to be signed on its behalf
by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATIOT
(Registrant

By: /s/ Susana’'Emic
Susana Emic
Senior Vice Presidantl Controllel

Date: November 8, 201
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Exhibit 31
CERTIFICATIONS
[, Mary Agnes Wilderotter, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report Form 10-Q of Frontier Communications Cogpion;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doescontain any untrue statement of a material dacmit to state a material fact necessai
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, rsbeading with respect to the per
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial estents, and other financial information includedhis report, fairly present in all matel
respects the financial condition, results of afiens and cash flows of the registrant as of,fandhe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officand | are responsible for establishing and ta@img disclosure controls and procedures
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportifgs defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls pratedures, or caused such disclosure contnolpeocedures to be designed unde
supervision, to ensure that material informatioiatieg to the registrant, including its consoliehtsubsidiaries, is made known t
by others within those entities, particuladyring the period in which this report is bepgpared;

b) Designed such internal control oveaficial reporting, or caused such internal cémiver financial reporting to be desigt
under our supervision, to provide reasonable rasse regarding the reliability
financial reporting and the preparation ofaficial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generabcepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the isteant's disclosure controls and procedures pmedented in this rep
our conclusions about the effectiveness of tiseldsure controls and procedures, as of the étldeoperiod covered by this rep
based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any changethe registrant's internal control over finahai@porting that occurred during 1
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the temyig's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of anuah report) that has materially affected
is reasonably likely to materially affect, thegistrant's internal control over financial rejpuay; and




5. The registrant's other certifying officandal have disclosed, based on our most recent a&tiaifu of internal control over financ
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and #loelit committee of the registrant's board okdrs (or persons performing the equive
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and nréaé weaknesses in the des
or operation of internal control over finamcireporting which are reasonably likely to adety affect the registrant's ability
record, process, summarize and report financiakmétion; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not materiakttinvolves management or other employees who aaignificant role in the registrar
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 8, 201 /s/ Mary Agnes Wilderotte

Mary Agnes Wilderotte
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 31.:

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Donald R. Shassian, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report Form 10-Q of Frontier Communications Cogpion;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doescootain any untrue statement of a material dacmit to state a material fact necessai
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, rebeading with respect to the per
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial estents, and other financial information includedhis report, fairly present in all matel
respects the financial condition, results of afiens and cash flows of the registrant as of,fandhe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officand | are responsible for establishing and ta@img disclosure controls and procedures
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%3(nd internal control over financial reportif@s defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls pratedures, or caused such disclosure corgnalgprocedures to be designed unde
supervision, to ensure that material informatioiatieg to the registrant, including its consoliefhtsubsidiaries, is made known t
by others within those entities, particuladyring the period in which this report is beprgpared;

b) Designed such internal control oveaficial reporting, or caused such internal cdwiver financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasien assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation ofaficial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generabcepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the isteant's disclosure controls and procedures pmedented in this rep
our conclusions about the effectiveness of tiseldsure controls and procedures, as of the érideoperiod covered by this rep
based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any changethe registrant's internal control over finahai@porting that occurred during 1
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the temyig's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of anuah report) that has materially affected
is reasonably likely to materially affect, thegistrant's internal control over financial rejpagy; and




5. The registrant's other certifying officandal have disclosed, based on our most recent a&tiaifu of internal control over financ
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and #loelit committee of the registrant's board okdrs (or persons performing the equive
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and nréaé weaknesses in the des
or operation of internal control over finamcireporting which are reasonably likely to adety affect the registrant's ability
record, process, summarize and report financiakmétion; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not materiakttinvolves management or other employees who aaignificant role in the registrar
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 8, 201 /s/ Donald R. Shassi:

Donald R. Shassic
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi




Exhibit 32.

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the quarterly Report of FrentiCommunications Corporation (the "Company") eorm 109 for the period endt
September 30, 2012 as filed with the Securities Brchange Commission on the date hereof (the dR§p I, Mary Agnes Wilderotte
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Comparertify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350adspted pursuant to Section 906 of
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the regarirents of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securkeshange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Repfairly presents, in all material respedise financial condition and results of operatiaf
the Company.

/sl Mary Agnes Wilderotter

Mary Agnes Wilderotter

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
November 8, 201

This certification is made solely for purpose ofU&.C. Section 1350, subject to the knowledgedstahcontained therein, and not for any ¢
purpose.

A signed original of this written statement riqd by Section 906, or other document authentigaticknowledging, or otherwise adopting
signature that appears in typed form within theckbnic version of this written statement regditby Section 906, has been provide
Frontier Communications Corporation and will betained by Frontier Communications Corporatiom dnrnished to the Securities
Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



Exhibit 32.z

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the quarterly Report of FrentiCommunications Corporation (the "Company") Form 10Q for the period endt
September 30, 2012 as filed with the Securities Bxchange Commission on the date hereof (the "R§pd, Donald R. Shassian, Cf
Financial Officer of the Company, certify, purstiem18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursgaBecttion 906 of the Sarban@siey Act of
2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the reaaritents of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securkeshange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Repfairly presents, in all material respedtise financial condition and results of operatianf
the Company.

/s/ Donald R. Shassian

Donald R. Shassian

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
November 8, 201

This certification is made solely for purpose of&.C. Section 1350, subject to the knowledgedstahcontained therein, and not for any ¢
purpose.

A signed original of this written statement riqd by Section 906, or other document authentigaticknowledging, or otherwise adopting
signature that appears in typed form within thectbnic version of this written statement regditby Section 906, has been provide
Frontier Communications Corporation and will betamed by Frontier Communications Corporatiom darnished to the Securities
Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



